mellmk

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-E--S+-A=+—HLEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2021

FE A Interest income 6 906,148 1,158,286
FEXH Interest expense 7 (451,260) (670,560)
BRI B2 WA Net interest income 454,388 487,726
EmHRE TR Net premiums earned 8 3,834,633 2,992,723
H A A Other income 9 2,146,210 807,841
KEWRANBE Total operating income 6,435,731 4,288,290
BRRELSFHE  BENHNEKk Net claims incurred, benefits paid and

REFBEAEEBEEY movement in policyholders’ liabilities 8 (4,079,450) (3,541,468)
AeXHFERBES Net commission and levy expenses 8 (962,127) (666,467)
FEE g Operating expenses 10 (491,896) (514,886)
RETRERT R &5 (EE)  Operating profit/(loss) before impairment 902,258 (434,531)
BB Charge of impairment allowances 12 (8,185) (5,178)
BBLAIRF (B51E) Profit/(loss) before taxation 894,073 (439,709)
I8 Taxation 13(a) (62,975) 77,585
REERR,(E8) Profit/(loss) for the year 831,098 (362,124)

FINE2S3EFEHTE AR A MR — 8 -

financial statements.

The notes on pages 141 to 253 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-E--S+-A=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2{020]
FAT
HK$'000
REE A (EE) Profit/(l0ss) for the year 831,098 (362,124)
Hit2mE s : Other comprehensive income:
HEWEEF > BEER Items that are or may be reclassified
FIER : subsequently to profit or loss:
AP EZ L AR 2 EIES  Debt instruments at fair value through
MEKTAE : other comprehensive income:
— A EEHFE — change in the fair value, net 2,634 (16,319)
— BEREEEFE — change in the loss allowance, net 12 (737) 1,024
REM 2 ERERERRIR SR Cash flow hedges recognised in other
Epati comprehensive income:
— A EEE)FEE — change in the fair value, net 5,724 (96)
NEFHM BB (E8) - Other comprehensive income/(10ss)
DB FEIE for the year, net of tax 7,621 (15,391)
AEEEEKE (EBE)EAH Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year 838,719 (377,515)

F101E253E FiElif s A S B HRERN—35 - The notes on pages 141 to 253 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZB=Z—F+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2021

2020
FHIT
HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ReEREHES Cash and short-term funds 14 45,249,382 21,900,341
JE W R B K% FE 5K Interest and remittance receivables il5 871,272 487,267
PTHESRTE Derivative financial instruments 16 812,397 797,352
A J\m%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂr%ﬁﬂ’\] Loans with special 100%
PBEEREEER guarantee under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme 17 71,063,154 36,084,713
EREEFE Loan portfolio, net 18 8,570,813 7,056,879
BHIRE Investment securities:
— ARAFEZEET AR — fair value through other
2EWER comprehensive income 19(a) 3,647,182 4,418,962
— URFEZ(E AEs — fair value through profit or loss 19(b) 10,710 265,769
— IR S AR AN R — amortised cost 19(c) 11,206,992 9,729,936
HNE B S TF K Placements with the Exchange Fund 20 28,633,258 16,336,835
JEMNEIE ke RHEMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 22 2,267,537 464,371
EIEF IR S B Deferred tax assets 13(b) 116,547 179,747
BREEE Reinsurance assets 26 491,049 377,502
BEEEE Fixed assets 23 237,941 257,395
EEAT Total assets 173,178,234 98,357,069
=N LIABILITIES
&£~ R B Interest payable 24 688,242 342,501
FETIRIE - BN REA Accounts payable, accrued expenses
BfE and other liabilities 25 21,384,151 9,641,398
MESRTITA Derivative financial instruments 16 334,529 281,230
EHINEAE Current tax liabilities 13(b) 136,260 136,745
R B E Insurance liabilities 26 16,784,290 11,186,971
BETEEE S Debt securities issued 27 115,652,967 61,909,148
BEHEE Total liabilities 154,980,439 83,497,993
= EQUITY
A ARG R Capital and reserves attributable to
the equity holder:
IS Share capital 28 9,500,000 7,000,000
RE & A Retained profits 6,618,097 6,075,082
[\ e A Contingency reserve 2,062,654 1,774,571
N EEE Fair value reserve 11,416 9,519
A Hedging reserve 5,628 (96)
TELSAEE Total equity 18,197,795 14,859,076
BEERERERH Total liabilities and equity 173,178,234 98,357,069

EEREN-_ZET-_—_FHATHABIERKET] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 May
1T ° 2022.

REX YUE Wai Man, Eddie =S LI Ling Cheung, Raymond
BIEEFF#HTTEFE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director  #77E F 442 Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

FINE23E TSk Alr A SRR —885 - The notes on pages 141 to 253 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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GARREHE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-E--S+-A=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2021

I RE & ERFEE AYLERE HHRE B
Share Retained Contingency  Fair value Hedging
capital profits reserve reserve reserve Total

TR TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

RZZ-Z5-f-RE Balance as at 1 January 2020 7000000 6553108 1,658,669 2,814 - 15236591
AEEER Loss for the year - (362,124) - - - (362,124)
LzEER Other comprehensive loss - - - (15,295) 9) (15,391)
AEE2AERER Total comprehensive 0ss for the year - (362,124) - (15,295) (%) (377,515)

HREEFEAC REERRE Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
BEN50% 5% ZEBESE  premium earned from retained profits

to contingency reserve - (221,219 21,219 - - -
HERFEEROZRZEF  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits = 105,317 (105,317) = - -
R-B-EE Balance as at 31 December 2020
+ZRA=T-B&& 7,000,000 6,075,082 1,774,571 9,519 (96) 14,859,076
REEGRF Profit for the year - 831,098 - - - 831,098
At 2ERER Other comprehensive income - - - 1,897 5,724 7,621
FEE2ARTES Total comprehensive income for the year - 831,098 = 1,897 5,724 838719
B (fi15E28) Capital injection (Note 28) 2,500,000 - = = - 2500000

HR2ENBEACHAERRE Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
FBEM50% 5% 2EMREE  premium eaned from retained profits

to contingency reserve - (522,348) 522,348 - - -
mERBEROZRZEA  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits - 234,265 (234,265) - - -
R-BZ-§ Balance as at 31 December 2021
+ZA=T-B&& 9,500,000 6,618,097 2,062,654 11,416 5628 18,197,795

F101 52538 FiElif s A A BB HRERN—385 - The notes on pages 141 to 253 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-E--S+-A=+—HLEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2021

REERCHERE cash flows from operating activities
g R (Eia) Operating profit/(loss) 894,073 (439,709)
EJELAT%IE{/EHj ESEEESE Adjustments for:
A2 A Interest income (904,173) (1,158,695)
FEXZ I Interest expense 341,069 545,728
g S A Dividend income 9 (215) (17,998)
REINEES TR W Income from placements with
the Exchange Fund 9 (1,991,151) (889,208)
e Depreciation 10 90,077 93,391
O BT E B A5 R 8 Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 110,191 124,832
N ERIER AL Charge of impairment allowances 12 8,185 5,178
BHTE (), m (B Amortisation of (discount)/premium on
investment securities (1,975) 409
AT ER L AIBZEHIRE Net loss on investments at fair
g EE value through profit or loss 9 10,238 64,597
TR IT AR EEE) Change in fair value of financial
instruments (192,870) 189,180
HH B 1 S Al AN B IR Y 35 B Net gain on disposal of investment
W3k E%m at amortised cost 9 (3,235) (11,074)
HEBTEERNEE Loss on disposal of fixed assets 61
2 U F 8 Interest received 1,186,346 1,248,112
EANEAIEN Interest paid (581,019) (576,101)
Rt EEERAGBESA Cash flows used in operating activities
g R xR (B FRIH S e before changes in operating assets
and liabilities (1,034,398) (821,358)
FEREIABRE=E B EETFEz Change in time deposits with original
el maturity of more than three months (24,046,208) 8,549,208
FE LI T =R & &) Change in remittance receivables (80,487) (57,993)
ENEHIB - e REMEES Change in prepayments, deposits and
other assets (1,803,246) 890,825
R/ EERAE R BESE  Change in loans with special 100%
(RIS B R guarantee under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (34,978,441) (36,084,713)
B A EE) Change in loan portfolio (1,519,745) (129,774)
FETIRIE - FEN S R EMEE Change in accounts payable, accrued
b expenses and other liabilities 11,605,798 4,239,536
1R B & HEE e a) Change in insurance liabilities, net 5,483,772 4,516,821
BE 3 =28 Exchange differences (37,712) 72,517
4R AR R (R 3H & Cash used in operation (46,410,667) (18,824,931)
BIRIIA Taxation paid (180) (27,209)
40 AN B (5 B 7 T STy Net cash used in operating activities (46,410,847) (18,852,140)
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HA|WERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2{020]
T4
HK$'000
RETHZRERE cash flows from investing activities
BEETETEE Purchase of fixed assets 23 (61,754) (46,640)
BEUAAFEE(LE AEAM Purchase of investment securities
2HENZENEEITE at fair value through other
comprehensive income 19(a) - (623,344)
BENAAFEZEF AEBZED Purchase of investment securities
BHEE at fair value through profit or loss 19(b) = (1,565)
B B IR SR AN T IR Y 55 25 Purchase of investment securities
wE at amortised cost 19(c) (2,744,548) (773,375)
HE MIEBERIEHIEEFTS0E Proceeds from sale and redemption
of investment securities 2,375,562 4,223,403
INEER ST Placements with the Exchange Fund (11,640,000) (2,566,000)
HNFE EE S IR FN Withdrawals from the Exchange Fund 1,500,000 -
B ETIRERE Dividend received from listed
investments 215 17,998
BEEE(FR)  EE2RE Net cash (used in)/generated from
FEE investing activities (10,570,525) 230,477
BMEEHARESRE B Net cash outflows before financing (56,981,372)  (18,621,663)
METE2HERE cash flows from financing activities
RITERAERA Proceeds from bank borrowings 19,821,844 15,939,666
ERIBITER Repayment of bank borrowings (19,821,844)  (15,939,666)
BITEBBHFRERE Proceeds from issue of debt securities 27 109,360,016 58,244,045
BB O B 31T E B A Redemption of debt securities issued 27 (55,532,806) (37,027,251)
HENRHARL LD Principal elements of lease payments (37,247) (53,637)
JEE TS FUA Proceeds from capital injection 28 2,500,000 -
MEEBEL 2RSS R Net cash generated from financing activities 56,289,963 21,163,157
HeRERESER (BL),/ Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
18 h0H 58 cash equivalents (691,409) 2,541,494
FORERERELIER Beginning cash and cash equivalents 14,499,795 11,957,183
EZHRESRERRLSERE Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents (3,117) 1,118
FREERERAELERH Ending cash and cash equivalents 14 13,805,269 14,499,795

F1E253E Fisiif st Atr A iSHRERm—385 »  The notes on pages 141 to 253 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

BERBESBRAR(XAR) REWNE
RE(REAEE) RS PERE 2
REEESHAMAGEMN BT BN B RS
ZR(BRMAERANERNTEHHEREE
A BAGFEARRE)  BAERARNE
SHRAEFECRBIRPDIREREL -

AR MBRRIZELKABIIRE - I
ERARFEIRNEHEEREREE
(BETASRTA)MEMRELFE -

BrmITRRALSN - BB AR A M ISR P IE
ROEBERMFEITE  BUAE2HRY
PEFEMERMNER— -

R A BB RS AT RS
BRAETHRGH AN MEREMA
7R B G S S 0B B TTHE I BT«
Bk B HIB S B 38 10 B0 SRR R A
HHGANEREBESNEE - SEM
HAEE -

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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SmEBEIRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

EEETFTER

2.1, RPFEMBREE
R-B=—F-—A—BBEN
BT B R 53T
AEEERA 5 EEH B

HEBERT

BEMBHREERFE9
5 BB SR ERIE39
% BRU K REER
E7R - BRYBHREE
AIF AR RBBRBERE
ERIE 165 (BRT) [ E%
M= E — F R

ZEETREERRR
E N E L AR N
SEFERMLESRE
) 2% 85 1 Bt 75 38 25 7 5
EE -

ZEEFTRBEATER
BEIE

— EREENEEX

BENEBRNET
EEIBNRER
ELBRATEF
EBH  FAERD
BHEORS

— AFEEREFE

HERE RN EH
FRIEEIR B K d
X A ERLE
HHEER &

— EERRFNETA

RARE RARE D
EVEDRES - RE RS
RHERRER  #
7R & B8 a8 B Y

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

New and amended standards effective on 1 January
2021

The Group has adopted the following amendments to
HKFRSS:

. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2"

The amendments address issues that might
affect financial reporting when an entity replaces
the old interest rate benchmark with alternative
reference rates (ARRS) as a result of the
interbank offered rate (IBOR) Reform.

The amendments include the following practical
expedients:

— a practical expedient to require contractual
changes, or changes to cash flows that
are directly resulted from the reform, to
be treated as changes to a floating interest
rate, equivalent to a movement in a market
rate of interest;

— permit changes required by IBOR reform
to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued; and

— provide temporary reliefs to entities from
having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when a risk-free interest rate
instrument is designated as a hedge of a
risk component.
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BRI

These amendments have no material impact on
the financial statements of the Group.

In March 2021, the UK's Financial Conduct
Authority and the administrator of London
interbank offered rate (LIBOR), the
intercontinental Exchange Benchmark
Administrator confirmed that the publication date
of the most widely used US dollar LIBOR settings
was extended from 31 December 2021 to 30 June
2023. Accordingly, the Group will review and be
ready for the transition of legacy contracts before
the revised date of cessation of LIBOR publication
by riding on the fallback provisions for derivatives
within the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association (ISDA) protocol, implemented in
January 2021 and contractual fallback language
within legacy loan contracts. The Group has
signed up the ISDA 2020 IBOR Fallbacks Protocol
and all of the Group'’s active ISDA counterparties
have adhered to the Protocol. Meanwhile, the
Group has been developing its capabilities to
cater for ARR products during the year and
fallback provisions have been incorporated into
all new IBOR contracts.

EHREVEERAT —T-—&F% 143



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b)
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The other standards effective in 2021 have no material
impact on the Group.

New standards and amendments issued but not yet
effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2021, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

o HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” establishes
a comprehensive global insurance standard
which provides guidance on the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures
of insurance contracts. The standard requires
entities to measure insurance contract liabilities
at their current fulfilment values. The Group is
yet to assess the full impact of the standard on
its financial position and results of operations.
The new standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and will
be applied retrospectively with restatement of
comparatives unless impracticable. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date and is in the process of
preparing the implementation of the standard.

There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective
that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2021.

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities used
for issuing mortgage-backed securities, namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited (in liquidation) and Bauhinia
MBS Limited (dissolved)) over which the Group has control.
The Group has provided financial support to the structured
entities during the year. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3.

2.4
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2:3.

2.4,

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest-bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider expected credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.21

(@) Feeincome

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.
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Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Income from placements with the Exchange Fund

Changes in fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” is recognised as income or
loss in the year in which they arise.

2.5. Financial assets

@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(OCl), or through profit or loss), and

3 those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.

The Group has classified the placements with the
Exchange Fund as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies investment securities when

and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Subsequent measurement of the Group’s financial
assets are classified into the following categories,
depending on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset:

. Amortised cost: assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

. Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI): assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains or l0sses.
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o Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the income statement within other gains or
losses in the period in which it arises.

() Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (ECLS) associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.2
provides more details of how the ECLS is measured.

2.6. Equity securities and investment funds

Equity securities are measured at FVPL unless an election is
made to designate them at FVOCI upon initial recognition.

For equity securities at FVPL, changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The election of FVOCI is made upon initial recognition
on an instrument-by-instrument basis and once made is
irrevocable. Gains and losses on these equity securities are
recognised in OCI, which are not reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss, including when they are derecognised.

Investment funds are measured at FVPL. Changes in fair
value of these funds are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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2.7. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost. All the financial
liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), and (ii) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
(MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (ii) financial
liabilities at amortised cost.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. If there
is change in the Group’s own credit risk, the changes in fair
value due to change in own credit risk are recorded in OCI.
Those notes which are designated as hedged items under
a fair value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes
subject to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of
the consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.8. Recognition and de-recognition of financial

instruments

Purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised
on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases
or sells the assets. Loan portfolio and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

The Group does not have an asset and a liability, when the
Group enters into an arrangement to pass through cash
flows from an asset and that arrangement meets specified
conditions. In these cases, the Group acts more as an agent
of the eventual recipients of the cash flows than as an owner
of the asset. Accordingly, to the extent that those conditions
are met the arrangement is treated as a transfer and
considered for derecognition even though the entity may
continue to collect cash flows from the asset. Conversely, to
the extent the conditions are not met, the entity acts more
as an owner of the asset with the result that the asset should
continue to be recognised.

EHREBEERAT —T=-—&F% 151



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. FTASMTI AR PETTRE

ITETARVIRAIITETAGHZ
BRAHERR  BEREAFEEHN
FPE - RAFEDRBEEMSEE
E o BRSAMER S MEBERG
ENE(BRRASRETHRRE LM
BEBRL) ETETANAFE
RIEHE  HEREEAK : MEARA
FEAEHEE  AERAEAR 1
ITETAMELERNEBRMENNES
DRI 2N AFIRIEK

RUAHERE - REBRTZITETR
ZRFEERERZEEAIENX
BRKREZRFE) °

ETHASRABZITETAZEE
H BRI ST A K3 R
(F - BEAOWLIHAATER LA
BB REHAXTETAR
{EABIHTAE T AR - HEBMAS
FETRAATEN 8 - MATES
BRI R R -

ERAFEERNTEBRRITAET
ARTBIEEREMIA  mBH ST
BRRBUASHIRR M E - REEE
EETITAETAR  ((BFEBRE
EXBEIBEEAENATE(AFE
BN P EEREELE
BERFERRHIRA AJREE LR ARHKIR
EnE(RERE) - EFEETIK
HEER T - HEERITE T ERAE
mEsthRE -

2.9. Derivative financial instruments and hedge

accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subseqguently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
(i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (ii) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated
in this way provided certain criteria are met.
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At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the
economic relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, including whether changes in cash flows of
the hedging instruments are expected to offset changes in
the cash flows of hedged items. The Group documents its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
its hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.

@)

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCl and accumulated in
equity as hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.
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(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

.Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.
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2.13.Foreign currency translation

@)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000)
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as FVOCI, a distinction is made between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount,
except impairment, are recognised in OCI.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at FVPL are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as FVOCI, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Right-of-Use assets on shorter of the end of the useful life of the
leased properties for own use  right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
Statement.

Annual Report 2021



2.15.

2.16.

R B A SRR ERRE

RIB AR EE - ELERT
AER - BB R R IREEITR
BEAR - EREEMAER - RREBE
BHERRMAZ M - X2
B RIEAR R BRI
HIREE @ BBNEBARESRS MK
FREWFEEE(BERE) -

EMRIBERIA

HARAX HERE R REEREA -
BAESERSERAER - RIESRIE
RREMEEWERRIE B S E R EE
HAMER  EERERAT HEDLE
FERMEE WA B R ERERTER -

BHMBEHXEREARE R EKE
NEVEE N EEERTRAERR
RERPRWEB D LB R RV
EETE - BEEERERRBAN R
HBRBERRNER N ERFERE
WK ENBRBAN - WE BB
KRR S RE AR X THEE B
R - AEBIR SRR EE
A2 — (BURR A S E IR M7
EREERRATHEEENAER)  5TE
HB R AR ©

EERBRAABEREERBEN
BERGES M IERERMEIIREEZ
R ZRERERE - BEHRIARMA
& E2WHRE WA L E R B I TR
EHREEEHIAEERRJRLEHRIA
BEGERERZHEEE -

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.16.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
OCl or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.17.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.
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(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

obligation.

2.19.Leases

(@) As alessee

0)

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.
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Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable.
The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification.
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(i) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition to leases of assets that
are considered as low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. Finance leases are capitalised
as receivables at the lease’s commencement at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease
which represents at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The difference between the gross
receivable and the present value of the receivable
is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease
income is recognised over the term of the lease using
the net investment method, which reflects a constant
periodic rate of return. Hire purchase contracts having
the characteristics of a finance lease are accounted
for in the same manner as finance leases. Impairment
allowances are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policies for loan portfolio as set out in Note
3.2.
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2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturities
of three months or less, including cash and balances with
banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.22(b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@) Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the MIP of
the Group is accounted for on the annual accounting
basis. Under the annual accounting approach, the
Group makes provisions based on credible estimates
of future income and outgoings to determine the
underwriting result for the current accounting period.
The underwriting result includes any adjustments
arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.
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Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Ccontingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for 10sses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.
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Commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.

Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMEs), in return for a guarantee fee,
insurance coverage on reverse mortgage loans and
policy reverse mortgage loans provided to elderly
people, in return for an insurance premium.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside
as a Ccontingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

In respect of insurance coverage on reverse mortgage
loans, the Group entered into reinsurance contract
with a reinsurer. Reinsurance contracts refer to
contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers
under which the Group is compensated for losses
0N one or more insurance contracts issued by the
Group. Benefits to which the Group is entitled under
its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.
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(c) Life insurance contracts

Premiums are recognised as income when the cash is
received from the annuitant, and the policy is issued
and becomes effective after the completion of all the
underwriting procedures.

Insurance contract liabilities are recognised when
contracts are entered into and premiums are
recognised. These liabilities are measured by using
the Modified Net Level Premium Valuation method for
long term business in accordance with the provision of
the Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Rules. The movements in liabilities at each reporting
date are recorded in the income statement.

Insurance claims reflect the cost of all annuity
payments, surrenders, withdrawals and death claims
arising during the year. Surrenders, withdrawals and
death claims are recorded on the basis of notifications
received. Annuity payments are recorded when due.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate
on each reporting date, using the current estimates of
future cash flows under these contracts. If the assessment
shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities are
inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows,
the shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

2.23.Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (iii) to develop
infrastructure financing business; (iv) to provide mortgage
insurance cover in respect of mortgage loans and reverse
mortgage loans originated by participating lenders and
secured on residential properties in Hong Kong, life insurance
policies and other assets, if applicable; (v) to operate a
scheme for the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (Government) providing guarantee
on loans advanced by participating lenders for local SMES
and to operate a scheme for the Government providing 100%
guarantee on loans advanced by participating lenders for
unemployed individuals; and (vi) to offer life annuity products
in or from Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group's activities
are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts, investments, and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
group level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees
of the Company, including Infrastructure Financing and
Securitisation Investment Committee (IFSIC), Credit
Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
Transaction Approval Committee (TAC), Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) Committee, and Operational
Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the Corporate Risk
Management Committee.
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The IFSIC executes oversight and approval authority
over all investments in infrastructure loans. The Credit
Committee oversees the credit policies and standards for
asset acquisition. The ALCO oversees the implementation
of market risk management and investment guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-
depth analysis of pricing economics and associated risks for
business transactions, whilst taking into consideration the
latest market conditions and business strategies approved
by the Board. The ESG Committee is established to direct
and oversee the development and implementation of ESG
strategy having regard to the relevant requirements and
guidelines. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all
business entities and line functions maintain an effective
operational risk and internal control framework. The ORC is
also responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Group Internal Audit Department is responsible
for the independent review of the internal control systems of
the Group.

The Group established Longevity Risk Committee to manage
longevity risk of the Group. Its duties include approving
longevity risk management policies and hedging transactions
and reviewing longevity experiences and exposures of the
Group. It also monitors and analyses the general trend,
technological changes and their implications for human
longevity.

In respect of general insurance business, a Risk Committee
is established by HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) as an
independent oversight committee to assist its Board to
oversee implementation of risk management framework
and manage all risks faced by the HKMCI. For HKMC Annuity
Limited (HKMCA), a Risk Committee is established to
manage the enterprise-wide risk matters, including financial
and non-financial risks.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk
which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk.
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3.2. Creditrisk

The Group's principal financial assets are its cash and short-
term funds, investment securities, placements with the
Exchange Fund, loan portfolio and loans with special 100%
guarantee under the SFGS. The credit risk on liquid funds and
investment securities is limited because the credit ratings
of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-sovereign
agencies, banks and companies, should meet the minimum
requirement in accordance with the investment guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. The capital of the
HKMCA and the HKMCI as well as premium receipts of the
HKMCA are placed with the Exchange Fund managed by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The credit risk on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is very limited as it
is exposure to the Government. Regarding loans with special
100% guarantee under the SFGS, the credit default risk of the
loans is fully guaranteed by the Government.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. The Group therefore has a
prudent policy for managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the loan portfolios, the Group
adheres to a prudent risk management framework to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria, (iii) conduct effective
and in-depth due diligence reviews, (iv) implement robust
project structures and financing documentation, (v) perform
an ongoing monitoring and reviewing mechanism, and
(vi) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Business units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.
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Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio and loans with special 100% guarantee under
the SFGS

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties located in Hong Kong and the deferred
consideration (Note 25). For hire purchase receivable, the
collateral types include taxi and public light bus licenses.
Mortgage portfolio and hire purchase receivable are
generally fully secured by collateral. The current collateral
value of properties is determined with the use of public
indices on a portfolio basis. The principal collateral types
for infrastructure loan portfolio mainly consist of security
interests in the assets of the borrowers and assignment of
key project documents and/or charge over bank accounts
but the actual security varies projects to projects. For
microfinance loans, no collateral is generally sought.

Regarding loans with special 100% guarantee under the
SFGS, no collateral is sought as the credit default risk of the
loans is fully guaranteed by the Government. Please refer to
Note 17 for more details.

Time deposits with banks, investment securities and
placements with the Exchange Fund

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short-term maturity.
Investment securities and placements with the Exchange
Fund are generally unsecured.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into ISDA master agreement with all
counterparties for derivative transactions where each
party will be able to settle all outstanding amounts on a net
basis in the event of default of the other party. The Group
also executed Credit Support Annex (CSA) with its major
counterparties in conjunction with the master agreement.
Under CSA, collateral is passed between the parties to
mitigate the counterparty risk inherent in outstanding
positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

For financial assets, the following credit risk modelling
applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information with the following indicators
incorporated:

o external credit rating (as far as available);

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower,

. significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes
in the financial conditions of the borrower.

A three-stage approach to measuring ECLs is applied on
loan portfolio, cash and short-term funds and investment
securities accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI.
Financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:
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Stage 1: 12-month ECLS

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of impairment provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount.

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted
estimates of expected loss. The amount of the ECLS is
recognised using an impairment allowance account with the
movement in this account charged to income statement.

At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for
ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (12-month ECLS). At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. In the event of a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment allowance is required
from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial assets (Lifetime ECLS). If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination,
then the impairment allowance reverts from lifetime ECLS to
12-month ECLS.
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Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. Loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have substantially been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Where loans have been written off, the Group continues
to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest and remittance receivables, deposits and other
assets are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, and the identified impairment allowance was
immaterial.

The Group uses three categories for loans which reflect their
credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for
each of those categories.

(@) Loans with special 100% guarantee under the SFGS

These loans are fully guaranteed by the Government as
detailed in Note 17. The Group uses three categories
for loans which reflect their credit risk:

Stage 1. It represents performing loans with low risk
of default and the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet contractual cash flows.

Stage 2. It represents loans with significant increase
in credit risk since the moment of acquisition,
for example there is interest or principal
payment overdue between 30 days and 60
days.

Stage 3: It represents loans with significant increase in
credit risk with interest or principal payment
overdue for over 60 days, or loans with
default notice submitted by banks.
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R-—ZE—_—F+=-A=+-—H
As at 31 December 2021

Given the default loss of these loans are fully
guaranteed, no impairment allowance is recognised in
view of the minimal default risk of the Government.

F—MEE FoMEE E=MEE B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FER FET TR TR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

70,525,852 214,994 322,308 71,063,154

IRE AR E Gross carrying amount
BB R Impairment allowance
R E & Carrying amount

70,525,852 214,994 322,308 71,063,154

RZZE_EF+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2020

F—FER FEREER FE=PEER HaE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FATT FHTT FHIT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MR AR E Gross carrying amount 36,067,560 10,841 6,312 36,084,713
B Impairment allowance = - _ _
IR EE Carrying amount 36,067,560 10,841 6,312 36,084,713
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NG (b) Loan portfolio

AEEEHEEBEEERER A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
R EEBEa N T Group's ECL model on loans is as follows:
BREAHCEHERENER
] HRIMNES Basis for recognition of
Category Definition of category ECL provision
F—[EE BERAZYNERRRE WERHENE 12@AAEBREESE(WEENTERTH
TEHNRERE ° D128 A - BITE B g5 18 12 E T B 4 B
HE-)
Stage 1 Borrowers have a low risk of defaultand ~ 12-month ECLs (Where the expected
a strong capacity to meet contractual lifetime of an asset is less than 12
cash flows. months, expected losses are measured at

its expected lifetime.)

FE[EER EXRNEERRAEISIN : FE R/ EHRFREEEBE-KREEEERE
ARG EFBEBBEIOKR - BRE B
EERREZEM -

Stage 2 Loans for which there is a significant  Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments
are more than 30 days past due.

F=EE MER/ZASEFEROKX - B BHRFREEEE—(FERE
ABRES M B % o
Stage 3 Interest and/or principal repayments  Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

are 90 days past due, borrowers with
bankruptcy or properties repossessed.

58 WEASEEHAA R EmERE K/A  #MEEEE
Write-off There is no reasonable expectation of  Asset is written off

recovery on the delinquent interest
and/or principal repayments.

KM EETEBERT  NER However, in certain cases, the Group will also consider
YIS anEREELEENE a loan to be in default when internal or external
LR - NER SN B R B information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
AEFETA L2 BN R ES receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
ARHEER  NEEBE IR before taking into account any enhancements held by
1EBA - the Group.
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Over the term of the loans, the Group accounts for
its credit risk by appropriately providing for ECLS on
a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category
of loan portfolio, and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data.

For mortgage portfolio and hire purchase receivable
assessed by portfolio base, the Group have adopted a
range of economic cycle stages for the assessment of
mortgage loans. Probabilities are assigned to different
economic cycle stages for the assessment. Based on
market outlook, Credit Committee members form a
view on the likelihood of each economic cycle stage.
The default probability is based on the weighted
average of likelihood of different economic cycle stage
and the corresponding default probability.

For infrastructure loans assessed by individual project
base, the Group have selected a forward-looking view
based on outlook of global economy, relevant regional
economic indicators, specific industry data, and
taking into consideration of the impact of any special
events. Infrastructure loans are rated under various
scenarios. The probability table is set up to determine
the probability of each scenario under each forward-
looking view.

The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of loan portfolio for which impairment
allowance is recognised.

E—EER FEPEER E=[EER g

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

R-ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H FET TFET THET F& T
As at 31 December 2021 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
I B 42 (B Gross carrying amount 8,560,284 7.829 8,176 8,576,289
o B Impairment allowance (4,965) = (511) (5,476)
IR A Carrying amount 8,555,319 7,829 7,665 8,570,813
F—EER % FEER 5= PEER 4=

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

RZZE-_ZFF+_A=1+—H TET FET FET FETT
As at 31 December 2020 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R T 481 Gross carrying amount 7,046,183 8,607 4,545 7,059,335
SRAE Impairment allowance (1,949) - (507) (2,456)
IR E{E Carrying amount 7,044,234 8,607 4,038 7,056,879
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Ef\fgi—i-t—* A=+—8H The impairment allowance for loan portfolio as at 31
B 2048 A I (B B 1 B ER R December 2021 reconciles to the opening impairment

fﬁﬁéﬁzgr@zuT : allowance as follows:

E-RE FE-ER EE T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

T TATT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZEB_ZF Impairment allowance
—A—BHRE as at 1 January 2020
B 813 - 775 1,588
DB ER M ER Loans purchased and
repayment 1,096 — — 1,096
FEERERFTEAR  Net measurement of
BT =/ FRE impairment arising
from transfer of stage - 112 298 410
EEER ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ Movement due to
B A Y changes in credit risk 40 - - 40
UEFR 6N Recoveries of loans not
written-off - (29) (103) (132)
1,136 83 195 1,414
LS E —[EER Transfer to stage 2 - 229 (229) -
EREE = Transfer to stage 3 - (312) 312 =
i Write-offs _ B (546) (546)
N_E_TF Impairment allowance
+ A=+—H# asat31December
BB (FFEE18) 2020 (Note 18) 1,949 - 507 2,456
P EEMNE R MER Loans purchased and
repayment 2,953 = = 2,953
PEEREEREFTEAR  Net measurement of
BB 2 F impairment arising
from transfer of stage - - 104 104
AEEREKRES) M Movement due to
EEERE changes in credit risk 63 - = 63
W [B] AR 3 85 B 3K Recoveries of loans
not written-off - - (100) (100)
3,016 - 4 3,020
HESEE R Transfer to stage 2 = _ _ _
LB R Transfer to stage 3 = - _ _
s Write-offs _ _ _ N
R=-EBE——F Impairment allowance
+=—H=+—HB# as at 31 December
BERE (FfEE18) 2021 (Note 18) 4,965 - 511 5,476
BB ERE Charge of loan
impairment allowance 3,016 - 4 3,020
EFURERRRE R & Charge of loan
commitment
impairment allowance 3,212 - - 3,212
W [E1 2 i s B 5K Recoveries of loans
previously written-off = = (421) (421)
RIERERREE Total charge/(write-
BiE/ (ER) back) of impairment
#azE (M 12) allowance
recognised in profit
or loss (Note 12) 6,228 - (417) 5,811
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Cash and short-term funds

The impairment allowance for cash and short-term
funds as at 31 December 2021 reconciles to the
opening impairment allowance as follows:

FET
HK$'000

ATZE-ZTF— A —BHREREE  Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2020 999

BRI s IER A RV E B 2 8 Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(FfzE12) in profit or loss during the period (Note 12) 1,247
R-E-FTFE+=-HA=1+—HHEME Impairmentallowance as at 31 December 2020

%éﬁ (FF5E14) (Note 14) 2,246
HINR B ERREREE Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(FfzE12) in profit or loss during the period (Note 12) 2,641
R=B=-—F+=-H=+—HHWEE Impairment allowance as at

B4 (i 14) 31 December 2021 (Note 14) 4,887

RIFEHERNIREIRS] - A&
B EA TN B Y RITIHEE
B ERIEEETRRIRTT o
REEERY — AR EER -
% B E N EE R 5 5 F K I
MERAFRRBENEBEREE
BB - WREAE RS
RPBIEEITRE  UREER
ERENEHREERE A%
B BRI 2B E AT = K A0RE
BOEERR - W E BRI RIE
R EIR  BEETAEN
REERREBHAAREES
% o BHIEBE R R ATLATIE 1
BEREEMEX -

EREIA FRIRITHEN R
BEFSRERR - E%E
TREEHRE QKRR
It HB P i 5 B R L B A 2 PR S
E—REER12{E A EHREER
B FR - RERBEMIE
ZHRIBITHFFIENAER - X
BEREE _ERNE=FEE -

According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only place deposits with note-issuing banks
or banks with a certain minimum credit rating.

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
macroeconomic data to determine the ECLs for
impairment allowance. The Group has selected a range
of possible economic outcomes, based on outlook of
global economy and relevant economic indicators,
taking into consideration the impact of any special
events, as the most suitable views to the portfolio.
A probability rate table is set up to determine the
probability rate for the forward-looking views.

All of these financial assets are considered to be low
risk in view of all deposit banks are rated at investment
grade by rating agencies, and thus the impairment
allowance recognised during the period was limited
to 12-month ECLs for stage 1. During the year, the
increase in the impairment allowance was mainly due
to the increase in deposits with banks and there was
no transfer to stages 2 and 3.
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As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the
minimum acceptable short-term credit ratings are A-2
(Standard and Poor’s), P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch’s).

Investment securities

According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only invest in debt securities with a certain
minimum credit rating. The proportion of investments
according to rating categories is monitored and
reviewed by ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating classification as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch’s). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

AR EEL
FFAEMEE REBHEKAET
WHRMESH ROBHKRE
#£¥E Investment

Investment securities at

securities at amortised

FVOCI cost

R-BE-_—F+=-H=+—H THExT TExT

As at 31 December 2021 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 138,123 775,957 914,080
AA-ZE AA+ A3 ZE Aal AA-to AA+/Aa3 to Aal 2,458,519 2,169,524 4,628,043
A-ZE A+ AIEAT A-t0 A+/A3t0 A1 1,050,540 8,265,403 9,315,943
R Total 3,647,182 11,210,884 14,858,066

A EZL

STAREMEE IR EA AT

WmMES ROBFEE

& Investment

Investment securities at

securities at amortised

FVOCI cost

R=—F_FF+_A=+—H THET TET

As at 31 December 2020 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 77,279 77,279
AA- 2 AA+/Aa3 £ Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 3,022,387 1,169,365 4,191,752
A-2 A+/A3ZE A1 A-to A+/A3 t0 A1 1,396,575 8,486,714 9,883,289
4B %EE Total 4,418,962 9,733,358 14,152,320
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The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of investment securities for which
impairment allowance is recognised. There was no
transfer to stages 2 and 3 during the period.

F-BER FRR F=ER

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
R=Z=—-%+=-A=+-H TR TR TR
As at 31 December 2021 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IRE4EE Gross carrying amount
— URFEEL — FVOCI 3,647,182 - - 3,647,182
FTAE A2 AR
— IR S B AT IR — amortised cost 11,210,884 - - 11,210,884
B Impairment allowance
— JREE SN R AN 0 — amortised cost (3,892) - - (3,892)
IREE Carrying amount
—URAFEEL — FVOCI 3,647,182 - - 3,647,182
FTAE A2 A
— R K AN A IR — amortised cost 11,206,992 - - 11,206,992
14,854,174 - - 14,854,174
F—FEER FEFEER FE=FEER 4z
NERCH Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R-ZE-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H FHAT FHT FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2020 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IREAE Gross carrying amount
—URAFEEL — Fvocl 4,418,962 = = 4,418,962
STAEMZEKE
— IRE SR A TIIR — amortised cost 9,733,358 - - 9,733,358
RER Impairment allowance
— JRE S R AN 0 — amortised cost (3,422) - = (3,422)
IREE Carrying amount
— AR FEEL — Fvocl 4,418,962 = = 4,418,962
T AR AR E
— R SHR AR — amortised cost 9,729,936 - = 9,729,936
14,148,898 - - 14,148,898
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R-ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H The impairment allowance for investment securities

B 78 75 1 B R (B 2 1 B R DR as at 31 December 2021 reconciles to the opening
BB HIRAT impairment allowance as follows:
E—E EoRE B fobc]
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
TET FHET FHT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RNIBE-ZF Impairment allowance as
—R—H at 1 January 2020
B Rk (1 M
— UARFEE L — FvoCl
SAEMEERE 474 - - 474
— IEHRTIR  — amortised cost 1,455 - - 1,455
HRR B ERA Change in the impairment
REREES) allowance recognised
in profit or loss during
the period
—NAFE#EE  —FVOC
S AE 2 E A 1,024 - - 1,024
— BRI — amortised cost 1,967 - - 1,967
RN-ZE-TF Impairment allowance as
+=—A=+—8 at 31 December 2020
B Rk (L HE A
—URFEE L — FvoCl
AR MEERE 1,498 - - 1,498
— REERL ARSI — amortised cost
(FHEE19(0)) (Note 19(c)) 3,422 - - 3,422
HRR B R R Change in the impairment
BEREE allowance recognised
in profit or loss during
the period
—URFEE L — FVOoC!
STAE M2 EE (737) - = (737)
— IREHEMATIE  —amortised cost 470 - - 470
R-ZE-—F Impairment allowance as
+=A=+—H at 31 December 2021
MR ERE
— AR ELZ — FVOCI
A2 E RS 761 - - 761
— REERATIR  — Amortised cost
(HF=E 19(c)) (Note 19(c)) 3,892 = - 3,892
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() Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities at amortised cost
include listed and unlisted debt securities. The
impairment allowance on investment securities
at amortised cost as at 31 December 2021
reconciles to the opening impairment allowance
as follows:

TR
HK$'000

R-ZZ-_ZTF— F—HHRERE Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2020 1,455
HIRN R B R R (B R i Change in the impairment allowance
(F5E12) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 12) 1,967
RZZE_EF+_A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at
(B M (T EE 19(0) 31 December 2020 (Note 19(c)) 3,422
HR R B e FE R R R B B 1 Change in the impairment allowance
(FizE12) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 12) 470
R-B=_—F+=-H=+—HW Impairment allowance as at
RE R (R 19(c)) 31 December 2021 (Note 19(c)) 3,892
AEEBEY —EEE The Group has established a provision matrix
B ZEEEREE that is based on the external credit rating of each
R 5 ¥ F & 5215 A AT counterparty and the corresponding historical
TBRIEEN BT EES credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
%@ iafz“* I AR B% A B M looking macroeconomic data to determine the
BB SIRETTIE ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
Mﬁmﬂﬁ%ﬁmﬁ% selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
EEEE - XEEER based on outlook of global economy and relevant
BRI BRI = kH#E economic indicators, taking into consideration
KBRS I%FE@ the impact of any special events, as the most
FRlEMHmEeE suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
BE TR % table is set up to determine the probability rate
REBHEEREEERE - for the forward-looking views.

B i E B = & DA 5L AT E
MHERAEEME -
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(i)

All of these investment securities carried at
amortised cost are considered with no significant
increase in credit risk as at 31 December 2021,
and thus the impairment allowance recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
limited to 12-months ECLS under Stage 1.
During the year, the increase in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the increase in
investment securities at amortised cost.

Investment securities at FVOCI

Investment securities at FVOCI include listed
and unlisted debt securities. The impairment
allowance on investment securities at FVOCI as
at 31 December 2021 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

FHT
HK$°000

N B FE— - BRRERE
HIP R B TR AL

Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2020 474

Change in the impairment allowance

(BF3E12) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 12) 1,024
RZEZZTF+=-A=1+—H Impairment allowance recognised in OCI as
REM 2 TR S ERARERE  at 31 December 2020 1,498
BARERERNREREES) Change in the impairment allowance
(B$3E12) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 12) (737)
R=-E=-_—H+=-HA=+—H Impairment allowance recognised
REMEZEKRERERNBERE in OCI as at 31 December 2021 761
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The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at FVOCI are rated at investment grade by rating
agencies, and thus the impairment allowance
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2021 was limited to 12-month ECLS under Stage 1.
During the year, the decrease in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the decrease in
investment securities at FVOCI.

In preparing the ECL, Credit Committee had formed
three forward-looking views based on market
conditions, real economies and a designated period of
historical macroeconomic variables for three scenarios.
The good view assumed a high probability of optimistic
scenario outcome whereas the bad view assumed a
high probability of pessimistic scenario outcome. A
designated period of historical data that covers peaks
and troughs of economic cycles were selected to
ensure the selection of scenarios stays unbiased.
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— Normal view

— Good view

The weightings assigned to each economic scenario,
base, pessimistic and optimistic as at 31 December
2021, were maintained at the same weightings as
at 31 December 2020 in view of market conditions
and uncertainty of the threat from new variant and
possibility of additional COVID-19 pandemic waves,
for the Group’s infrastructure loans, deposits and debt
investments, of which the impairment allowance is
provided based on credit ratings (either external or
internal) and forms the majority of total impairment
allowance.

Sensitivity analysis of ECL

The Group applies three alternative macro-economic
scenarios (base, pessimistic and optimistic scenarios)
on the forward-looking views to reflect probability-
weighted range of possible future outcomes in
estimating ECL. The table below provides approximate
levels of provisions of impairment under the
normal, bad and good forward-looking views for the
infrastructure loans, deposits and debt investment
portfolio of the Group:

2021 2020
ERFEHEE E2HELBEE
EBR2BSE EBEEZIHeE

Amount
change from
the reported

Amount
change from
the reported

ECL ECL
FHET FHETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

®g,CRd) i Ok
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

(8,010) (4,852)

(9.874) (6,046)
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Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
into account of collateral held or other credit
enhancements are analysed as follows:

The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
assets of the Group are equal to their gross carrying
amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of
the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group before
taking into account of reinsurance arrangements are
as follows:
2021 2020
FAT
HK$'000

FET
HK$'000

[B e $2 R AR R Total risk-in-force

— RIBRBEK — mortgage insurance business 88,917,190 54,543,200
— BRERIGET — reverse mortgage business 18,660,656 15,019,982
107,577,846 69,563,182

® REER (@ Impaired loans
2020
T
HK$'000
BEEHEE B Gross impaired loan portfolio 511 507

BRABFNE TR ERE Allowance for loan impairment in
— E=[EER respect of such advances — Stage 3 (511) (507)

R=FB——F+-_H=+—~H
E-—F_FF+-A=1+—
B NEE R EE SRR
BHEMm

(hy WEHE (h)

AEBE Y EERERAE TR
HEE °

WEMEBEERAITERT
BREE  AEFREARED
REEEE - WEY RN
ARRKRARER [HEtEE] ]
BT -REEBEEBRHE
&R KR - AR BOE A ROR
B DEREENRIEA o

There was no collateral held for impaired loans of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued and
assets by the use of cross-currency swaps as fair value
hedges and economic hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2021 would decrease the future net interest
income for the next twelve months by around HK$18 million
(2020: HK$11 million decrease) and increase by around
HK$15 million (2020: HK$10 million increase) for a similar
upward parallel shift.

EBRBESERAT —S-—&F% 187



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RZZEZ—F+="A=+—08 " 0%
B =R F1T R0 EER - F R
TS INA 76008 B T(ZE=F
F:90088T) RZTE=Z—F
+= A=1+—BWHRAFERFEEIND
0B B T( -4 : 8008 &
JC) ° MAFIEF 4T LR 20 EER - F
AE AR 7,500 88T (ZE-F
& 89008 B T) « mAFERFE
TH#HA00EBT(ZZT=FF : 800
BB

R-ZT=_—F+=-A=+—8 " &F
BHMAZRRRIFTENERT
P TT A R ER TR 1008 F - &
R F #8049 1,200 B8 T (—F =
TF 140088 L) o k2 WETT
HETER 10025 - BIE R
FER L 12088 T(ZT=F
& 1,400887T) °

R-ZT-——®F+=-A=+—Q1 ' EFF
BHMAIEERZRBFIEMNBTLT
ARSI H, 22 TT LASNRY EL A SNEE [ R TR
EK 10025 1 + F W@ A 15 3% 502,500
EBTT(ZZ=ZF : 1,0008%87T) °
Rz W7 TT R 3 TT AN E A S EE
MR F100286F & Wi A5 R
25008 B T(ZE=FF : 1,000&
BIL) ©

7 55 B T i ) 1N B L < 7 35K B g R 4
FELNTHRR  BEERETR
BFET(FEGERREREAS
HEREER—AEFHET mMKH
EEEESNERBNRE= B A sk
E) e RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—
B EANFEENERE EF B
0.1% * fEFTE H Mh Al #E R RIF T
WIERT - s ASEREAINEES
TR A A IE 10,7 2 492,400 8
BIL(ZE_ZF : 1,6008B7T) °

As at 31 December 2021, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been higher by around HK$76 million
(2020: HK$90 million) and the fair value reserve would have
been higher by around HK$6 million (2020: HK$8 million) as
at 31 December 2021. If interest rates had experienced a 20
basis points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year would
have been lower by HK$75 million (2020: HK$89 million) and
the fair value reserve would have been lower by around
HK$6 million (2020: HK$8 million).

As at 31 December 2021, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$12 million higher (2020:
HK$14 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$12
million lower (2020: HK$14 million).

As at 31 December 2021, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than US
dollars, profit for the year would have been higher by HK$25
million (2020: HK$10 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong
dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points against
foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for the year
would have been lower by HK$25 million (2020: HK$10
million).

The Group is exposed to financial risk arising from changes
in the rate of return on the placements with the Exchange
Fund, which is set annually (the placements include
Investment Portfolio which rate of return will reset in January
while the return of LTGP will only be available in March in the
following year). As at 31 December 2021, if there were an
increase/decrease of 0.1% in the current year rate of return,
it is estimated that, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s income from the placements with the Exchange
Fund would have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$24 million (2020: HK$16 million).
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As at 31 December 2021, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, profit for the
year would have been around HK$0.1 million lower (2020:
HK$3 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trusts had increased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been around HK$0.1 million
higher (2020: HK$3 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars, British
pounds, Australian dollars, Euro and Japanese yen. All
foreign currency-denominated debts are hedged into
Hong Kong dollars or US dollars.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.
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BT

TRR
HK$'000

e

TRR
HK$'000

Hispk
Other foreign

currencies
TAER
HK$'000

B

Total
TER
HK$'000

R-BE-—-& As at 31 December 2021
TERET=E
SREE Financial assets
BehwHEe Cash and short-term funds 43,523,586 1,342,495 383,3010 45,249,382
JE U B R EE K Interest and remittance
receivables 325,259 116,314 429,699 871,272
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 812,397 - - 812,397
RNRIEERTEIT  Loans with special 100%
HADBEREER guarantee under the SME
=EN Financing Guarantee Scheme 71,063,154 - - 71,063,154
ESHEFE Loan portfolio, net 4,151,593 3,333,262 1,085,9582" 8,570,813
BEERE Investment securities:
—URTFEZEFA  —FVOCI
Hiv 2 EME 601,563 3,045,619 - 3,647,182
— AT EE — FVPL
FABR 1,354 9,356 - 10,710
— IRE SRR TR — amortised cost 297,536 8,292,847 2,616,609 11,206,992
INEESTER Placements with the
Exchange Fund 28,633,258 - - 28,633,258
ReREMEE Deposits and other assets 1,863,384 140,549 253,888 2,257,821
THEELT Total financial assets 151,273,084 16,280,442 4,769,455 172,322,981
SHEE Financial liabilities
BRI Interest payable 258,339 41,012 388,891 688,242
FERHIRIE - RIS K Accounts payable, accrued
HithBE expenses and other liabilities 20,470,333 913,724 94 21,384,151
fTHESMTE Derivative financial instruments 334,529 - - 334,529
BETEBES Debt securities issued 73,064,515 16,327,369  26,261,083** 115,652,967
PRAGESE Total financial liabilities 94,127,716 17,282,105 26,650,068 138,059,889
REFE" Net position* 41,080,071 (1,001,663)  (21,880,613) 18,197,795
BEARRINF Off-balance sheet net
P ey notional position # (34,756,067) 10,340,223 24,712,746 296,902
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AN

* %

##

Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$0.3 billion and renminbi of HK$0.1 billion.

Amounts included loan portfolio, net in Australian dollars of
HK$1.1 billion.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.4 billion and renminbi of HK$24.9 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

“Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.
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e HAoh&
Other foreign
currencies
THT THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NZE-TF As at 31 December 2020
+=A=+—H
TREE Financial assets
BekEhEs Cash and short-term funds 17,617,221 2,780,350 1,502,770" 21,900,341
JEMTH 8 K [E Interest and remittance
receivables 295,292 114,142 77,833 487,267
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 797,352 - - 797,352
RN EVEERTEIT  Loans with special 100%
MBS BERER guarantee under the SME
=64 Financing Guarantee Scheme 36,084,713 - - 36,084,713
BEEAFE Loan portfolio, net 4,262,138 1,076,962 1,717,779 7,056,879
BHEE Investment securities:
—UATEEGTA  —FVOCl
Hi2ENE 900,810 3,518,152 = 4,418,962
— UAFEEE —FVPL
FABE 255,906 9,863 - 265,769
— IRE SRR TR — amortised cost 647,327 9,082,609 - 9,729,936
NEEEL TR Placements with the
Exchange Fund 16,336,835 - - 16,336,835
REREMEE Deposits and other assets 428,635 27,151 99 455,885
SRHEELS Total financial assets 77,626,229 16,609,229 3,298,481 97,533,939
SRARE Financial liabilities
&2 Interest payable 226,545 39,775 76,181 342,501
FERTIRTE - FEfTBRZ R Accounts payable, accrued
HivBE expenses and other liabilities 8,857,154 782,965 1,279 9,641,398
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 281,230 - - 281,230
BRTERES Debt securities issued 46,148,718 10,498,417* 5262,013** 41,909,148
SRAELSE Total financial liabilities 55,513,647 11,321,157 5,339,473 72,174,277
R FE Net position® 11,611,996 5,288,072 (2,040,992) 14,859,076
BEERINE Off-balance sheet net
ZERBRH notional position # (10,404,896) 7,275,309 3,248,283 118,696
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A Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$0.3 billion and renminbi of HK$1.2 billion.

AN Amounts included loan portfolio, net in Australian dollars of
HK$1.7 billion.

* Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

* Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.5 billion and renminbi of HK$3.7 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

# “Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

i “Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-BANE  ZEAME -EHE
-EAR ZZfA E-F it BENE FitE
Over Over Over Non-
Upto 1monthto 3monthsto  1yearto Over interest
Tmonth  3months 1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
TR T Thn Thn Tén T Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZB--F+ZB=1-H As at 31 December 2021
SHEE Financial assets
Rehigis Cash and short-term funds 14,576,775 25,701,822 3,498,491 - - 1,472,294 45,249,382
FEHS RERR Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 871,272 871,272
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 812,397 812,397
R EREITH Loans with special 100%
BABERKEER guarantee under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme 71,063,154 - - - - - 71,063,154
EpasnE Loan portfolio, net 5,455,979 1,711,126 920,890 3,050 479,768 - 8570813
FHRE: Investment securiies:
—UATEE(HAEZANE —FVOC = 1,844,470 1,239,160 247,468 316,084 - 3,647,182
—JATES RS —FWPL - - - - - 10,710 10,710
— REERATR — amortised cost 183,840 221,676 2,137,245 3,492,525 5,171,706 - 11,206,992
MNEESER Placements with the
Bxchange Fund - - - - - 28633258 28,633,258
EEREMEE Deposits and other assets 132,381 - - - - 2125440 2,257,821
SHEELT Total financial assets 9412129 29479094  7,795786 3743043 5967558 33925371 172,322,981
SHEE Financial liabilities
EfFIE Interest payable - - - - - 688,242 688,242
EfRE - ERFEZR Accounts payable, accrued
AthRfk expenses and other liabiies 13,576,373 - - - - 1807778 21,384,151
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 334,529 334,529
BEIBEES Debt Securities issed 5,282,958 20,566,178 41,497,253 43,505,450 4,801,128 - 115,652,967
SRHAELE Total financial liabilities 18,859,331 20,566,178 41,497,253 43505450 4,801,128 8,830,549 138,059,889
FEGREHRD A% Total interest sensitivity gap* 72,552,798 8912916  (33,701,467) (39,762,407) 1,166,430
HRGATE(BEFBNLE2E)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) (4,503,479) (22,297,914) 19,317,832 7,622,524 157,939
* RETAPTE SR T AHB T * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

BREFEELSHNTE - on the debt securities issued.
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—FHL

—f@ARA ERE RENE A5tE
Over Non-
Upto  Tmonthto  3monthsto 1yearto Over interest
1 month 3months 1 year 5years 5years bearing Total
T Thr T B TiEn Thn Fhr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
RZF-FF+-A=1-A As at 31 December 2020
ERAE Financial assets
ReREgEs Cash and short-term funds 9,020,807 10,520,299 2,109,572 = = 249,663 21,900,341
I8 RER Interest and remittance
receivables = = = = = 487,267 487,267
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 797,352 797,352
O RERRGETH Loans with special 100%
BABERKEEN guarantee under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme 36,084,713 - - - - - 3084713
EREATE Loan portfolio, net 5,476,652 910,837 537,080 7,460 124,350 - 7,056,879
BHRE: Investment securities:
—NATEEGALZEYE  —FAOC 544,259 2,835,879 302829 410023 359712 - 4,418,962
—IATEE A ABR —FVPL = = = = = 265,769 265,769
— R AT IR — amortised cost 910,933 23265 386,926 3,317,001 5091811 = 9,729.93
MNEESTEH Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 1633685 1633683%
BERAEE Deposits and other assets 27,061 - - - - 428824 455,885
SREELE Total financial assets 52064425 14,290,280 3336407 3,734,484 5542633 18565710 97533939
SHAR Financial liabilities
EffE Interest payable - - - - - 342,501 342,501
EfIRE - ERFZR Accounts payable, accrued
Ahaf expenses and other liabilties 8152311 - - - - 1,489,087 9,641,398
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 21230 281230
BEREES Debt securities issued 7,152,002 12011775 25,856,147 12043416 4,845,808 = 61,909,148
SREESE Total financial liabilities 15,304,313 12011775 25,856,147 12043416 4,845,808 2112818 12174211
FEGRERO AT Total interest sensitivity gap* 36,760,112 2278505 (22519740 (8308932 696,825
TEATETA (B FENLESE)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) 67595 (11016852 9511033 1122773 434147
* RETATE SR T AHBRT & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

BREFEELSHNTE - on the debt securities issued.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

@)

Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
Cross currency swaps and currency forwards that will
be settled on gross basis.
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iy FELTETEBERACRE) ()  Non-derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

-BANE =AML —ENE
Z=fA 2-F Z1E
AR Over Over Over RENE

Upto 1monthto 3 monthsto 1year to Over a8
1 month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years Total
TiEx TiEn TR T TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=Z2--%+-F=+-F Asat31December 2021

af Liabilities
MR  ERRT R Accounts payable,

AtBE accrued expenses

and other liabilities

—fHEaRE — lease liabilities (3,324) (6,648) (29,685) (107,436) (5,800) (152,893)
BEIRHES Debt securiies issued

— &85 — principal portion (3,525,144)  (11,933,549) (45,728,239) (47,721,173)  (4,913,791) (113,821,896)

—Hg#Hs — interest portion (35,529) (431,567) (845,452)  (1,395,004)  (1,588,399)  (4,295,951)

(3,563,997)  (12,371,764) (46,603,376) (49,223,613)  (6,507,990) (118,270,740)

Z@ANE —EpLE
A E-F BRF
—f@ARA Over Over over

Upto Tmonthto 3 months to 1yearto ]
1month 3months 1year 5years Total

AT TR T TEn ; T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=ZB-ZF+-F=+—H Asat31December 2020

A Liabilities
EMIRE  ERRT R Accounts payable,

A8t accrued expenses

and other liabilities

—HERRE — lease liabilities (4,305) (7,19) (26,149) (116,926) (29,001) (183,577)
BEIRHES Debt securiies issued

— &85 — principal portion (6,352,955 (8373273 (26850,154)  (15,127,676) (4,576,908)  (61,280,966)

—HEHH — interest portion (63,79) (139,651) (@09,171) (877881)  (1660821)  (3151320)

(6421,056) (8520120)  (27,285474) (16,122,483 (6.266,730) (64,615,863
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iy TTEIERERACRit) (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

-HANE Z@ANE -ENE
R B-F BRE
AR over Over over REBE

Upto 1monthto 3monthsto  1yearto Over ke
1 month 3 months 1 year EH 5 years Total
TiEx TiEn TiEn T TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE=-% As at 31 December 2021
TZA=t-H
BTIEEESN Derivative financial
(TERBITE instrument settled:
—FEEE — 0N net basis (8.896) (1,177) 33562 (147,171) 107 (123,575)
—BHEE — 0 gross basis
st Total outflow (2,772,748)  (8.477,853) (22,542,231) (16,446,495  (917,603) (51,156,930)
TGS Total inflow 2794769 8863581 23183567 16,609,832 891768 52,343,517

13,125 384,551 674,898 16,166 (25,728) 1,063,012

ZEANE  —ESE
2-F LYk
—fHAA Over over  REME

Upto  1Tmonthto  3monthsto 1yearto QOver 8
1 month 3months 1year Syears 5years
TAT THL TAL AT TAT j
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WZZE-F As at 31 December 2020
+=A=t+-H
BTHEEESR Derivative financial
fTERBTE instrument settled:
—FREE — 0 net bass (1555) (343)) 6916 (1750 178 %6
—BHEE —0N gr0ss basis
iofustcxc: Total outflow (2690,459) (@0503) (11187800 (7161645 (1374996) (22750903
MALEE Total inflow 2,790,353 MW5%  N2190 7100874 1399766 22964439

98,339 33070 160,056 (62,521) (15,062) 213892
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(b)

EH A D

TRIBBEZHRHPRES W]
HRIEREE - 2T EHEEER

B EREAER -

k)
Repayable

on demand
TiEn
HK$'000

Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

—fiBR
Upto
1 month
TiEx
HK$'000

—f@AULE =AML
Z=f8R E-F
Over Over

1 month to 3 months to
3 months 1year
TERL TERL
HK$'000  HK$'000

—FhE
Zn%
over
1yearto
5 years
AT
HK$'000

RENE
Oover

5 years
FAT
HK$'000

BRE
Undated
TiEn
HK$'000

@E
Total
TiEn
HK$'000

R-B--%+-H=+-R Asat31December 2021
EE Assets
ReREHES (B5) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 2,884,469 13,165,337 25,705,463 3,499,000 = = - 45,254,269
AR E R E T Loans with special 100% guarantee
BABEREEER under the SME Financing
(Guarantee Scheme 11,781 904,589 1,828,156 10,844,682 42,370,361 15,103,585 - 71,063,154
EFHa Loan portfolio 610 39,230 114,623 553,387 3,663,289 3,928,599 276,551 8,576,289
EHRE Investment securities
—UATERILEA —Fvocl
Eth2EkeE = - 819,067 1,582,651 929,380 316,084 - 3,647,182
—UATER(E A RS —FVPL - - - - - - 10710 10710
— REENATR (25) — amortised cost (gross) - - 62361 1831157 4,143,659 5,173,707 - 11,210,884
PNEELTFER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - 4,665,272 8973975 14,994,011 - 28,633,258
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 491,049 491,049
2,896,860 14,109,156 28,529,670 22,976,149 60,080,664 39,515,986 778,310 168,886,795
& Liabilities
RREE Insurance liabilities - 69,308 126,265 558,196 2,665,163 8,163,521 5,201,837 16,784,290
BETERES Debt securities issued - 5,282,958 11,958,822 45,747,073 47,663,067 5,001,047 - 115,652,967
- 5,352,266 12,085,087 46,305,269 50,328,230 13,164,568 5,201,837 132,437,257
FHE
R i3
sl —EAR Over Over  REHNE
Repayable Upto 1monthto 3monthsto  1yearto Over BRH
on demand Tmonth  3months 1 year 5years 5years  Undated
T T ] FHT FHT FHT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W=Z-FE+-F=+-F Asat31December 2020
AE Assets
LeREREe (857) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 852013 8419075 10521641 2,109,858 - - - 21902587
R RE ERATEI T Loans with special 100% guarantee
BABERFEER under the SME Financing
(Guarantee Scheme 1,608 417,514 817,410 7139290 27,702,459 6,432 - 36,084,713
EF@A Loan portfolio 869 48,879 100,428 497,497 2872425 3,429,980 109,257 7,059,335
BHRE Investment securities
—DAFEZEA —Rvocl
Hip2EksE = - - 768342 3,324,648 325,972 - 4418962
—RFER{GH AR —FVPL - - - - - - 25769 265769
— REHAATIR (B8) — amortised cost (gross) - 910,963 23,266 86,991 3318342 5,093,796 - 973338
PNEELTER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - 8571132 7,765,703 - 16,336,835
BRBEAE Relnsurance assets - - - - - - 37502 377,502
854490 9796431 11,462,745 10901978 45,789,006 16,621,883 752,528 96,179,061
AR Liabilities
RERAR Insrance liabiliies - 47,803 92658 409151 1933551 5654913 3048895 11186971
BRIERES Debt securities issued - 6452118 8373542 26,841,145 15,396,534 4,845,809 - 61,909,148
- 6499921 8466200 27250296 17,330,085 10,500,722 3048895 73,096,119
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$80 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

Through its general insurance subsidiary, the Group provides
the mortgage insurance cover to participating lenders for
first credit losses, in general, of up to 40% of the property
value of a residential mortgage loan in Hong Kong with
loan-to-value ratio 90% or below at origination, or other
thresholds as specified from time to time. The Group also
provides financial guarantee cover to participating Als up to
50%-70% of the banking facilities granted to SMEs in Hong
Kong and insurance cover in respect of reverse mortgage
loans originated by participating lenders and secured
on residential properties, life insurance policies and, if
applicable, other assets.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.
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Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance
of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims.
Low mortality rate of reverse mortgage borrowers means
longer payout period and larger loan balance will be over
time. This will affect the frequency and severity of claims as
there is a risk of the property value insufficient to cover the
outstanding loan balance in the future.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share
reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers in an
effort to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance
business and reverse mortgage business. The Group
conducts comprehensive assessment including the financial
strength and credit ratings of the reinsurers in accordance
with the approved selection framework. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews. For
financial guarantee cover provided to participating lenders
via its general insurance subsidiary, the Group relies on the
lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the borrowers to
mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility will be
shared proportionately between the Group and the lender on
a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a
regular basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between
the actual and expected operating results.
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Through its life insurance subsidiary, the Group offers annuity
product to personal customers. Insurance risk arises from
an inaccurate assessment of the risks entailed in writing and
pricing an insurance policy. The major insurance risk is the
longevity risk which arises from the possibility that actual
life expectancy of annuitants being longer than expected.
Insurance risk is managed by adopting a prudent set of
assumptions and conducting regular experience studies.
Asset-liability mismatch risk inherent to the annuity product
is due to asset volatility, uncertain annuity liabilities, cash
flow mismatch and currency mismatch between assets and
liabilities. To mitigate such risk, the Group actively monitor
the performance and steadfastly maintains control over
asset allocation.

The general insurance subsidiary and life insurance
subsidiary are subject to the supervision of the Insurance
Authority and are required to observe the relevant
compliance requirements stipulated by the Insurance
Authority.

As at 31 December 2021, if the combined ratio of general
insurance business had increased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$7 million (2020: HK$4 million) lower.
If combined ratio had decreased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$7 million (2020: HK$4 million) higher.
Combined ratio is calculated by taking the sum of incurred
losses and expenses and then dividing them by net earned
premium.

The following table shows the sensitivity of insurance
liabilities on the life insurance business to potential changes
in mortality and valuation interest rate.
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R-ZE-_—F+=-H=+—H
As at 31 December 2021

A mp:S
+ 10%
- 10%
(EYERIES
+ 0.5%
-0.5%

Mortality

+ 10%

- 10%

Valuation interest rate
+0.5%

-0.5%

REBEE
SEEH
Amount
change from
insurance
liabilities

FE T
HK$’'000
B/ ORs)
Increase/
(decrease)

(173,123)
192,379

(525,658)
573,362

REEE
B EE
Percentage
change from
insurance
liabilities

%

B/ ORs)
Increase/
(decrease)

(1.5)
1.7

(4.5)
5.0

R-ZFZFF+-A=1—H
As at 31 December 2020

FlAmp:S
+ 10%
- 10%
(EYEVIES
+ 0.5%
-0.5%

Mortality

+ 10%

- 10%

Valuation interest rate
+0.5%

-0.5%

R BE

Amount
change from
insurance
liabilities
T
HK$'000
&/ Crd)
Increase/
(decrease)

(122,993)
136,892

(366,797)
399,562

RREE
BobE
Percentage

change from
insurance
liabilities

%

#an/ Crd)
Increase/
(decrease)
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3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

3.6. SRS ERBEBENATEE
(@ AFEME (@)  Fair value estimation

TRINTEAFEREGE
HEGE)ERANERTA -

The following table shows financial instruments
recognised at fair value, by valuation method.

R=8=-%+=A=t+-A
As at 31 December 2021 Asat31De
-8 -8 %58 8 Ea 2B a8
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level2 Total
TiEn TEx AT T THL THL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BE Assets
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 812,397 - 812,397 - 797,352 - 797,352
FHRE Investment securities
—IATERGA  —FOCl
Ep2Eks 2,358,572 1,288,610 - 3,647,182 2,835,020 1,583,942 = 4418962
—HATERL —FVPL
FABER 10,710 = = 10,710 205,769 - - 205,769
NEELER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - 28,633,258 28,633,258 - - 163%83% 1633683
2,369,282 2,101,007 28,633,258 33,103,547 3,100,789 2,381,294 16,336,835 21818918
8% Liabilities
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 334,529 - 334,529 - 281,230 - 281,230
= 334,529 = 334,529 - 281,230 - 281,230

RNAREE  F—EBHE_EHN There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 nor

SRITAZEWLBER - 75
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REBTHERHNE B
TE ERFEERE
ERMEMTHRE -
HERMGREN LR S
o M E BRI R 5 R
X588 KR TTFRW
T EERBEBENE
ERBENSHE MK
FERARBAFEE
EBREMEREM SR
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=

transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and currency forwards. These
derivatives are fair valued using forward interest
rates and forward exchange rates, if applicable,
from observable yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.
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(i) Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3. The placements with the
Exchange Fund are included in Level 3 with fair
value determined by reference to the estimated
rates of investment return, approximate the
carrying value.

Movement in Level 3 fair value measurement as

B 22T - follows:
2021 2{070]
FE&xT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
m—H—H As at 1 January 16,336,835 12,881,627
SNE B TF 7K * Placements with the
Exchange Fund* 11,640,000 2,566,000
HINEE SR Withdrawals from the
Exchange Fund* (1,500,000) =
R8s R H Income from placements with
SN E S 17 SR 2 the Exchange Fund recognised
GET)) in profit or loss (Note 9) 1,991,151 889,208
REA B EH R Income from placements with
AP B B 77 Uk A+ the Exchange Fund recognised
in other liabilities* 165,272 -
K+=—H=+—8” As at 31 December 28,633,258 16,336,835

& P St SN
B 3R B R A 1E
BEEAAFERE NG
2T 8 B e TE A 3K
I8 X BT 77 L6018 7B
L EHRERIISE
BTABRTEEREA
HEENETHE
Ko MNZE=_—F+=
B=+—8  RIER
& 17 A TE A R IE 4
SRE R EET A B 47
BAT(ZEZFF:
/) E—FHFERS
BRI FE29 o

* During 2021, the Group placed on behalf of the
Government HK$6 billion with respect to the advance
payment received from the Government for purchasing
loans under PLGS, of which $1.5 billion was withdrawn
to purchase of loans under PLGS for the Government.
As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding balance of
the advance payment placed with the Exchange Fund
together with accrued interest amounted to HK$4.7
billion (2020: nil). Please refer to Note 29 for more
details.
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

(b) UFUARXFEFENEHMEE (b)
MeE

RZE_—F+=-A=+—H
;MZZEZEF+ZA=1+—
B AEBEWARRM AR RE
EATEESEINEHTARN
REERAFEIREERT
o BrEIREERAFERE
MemT AN TRAEEUA
TEFENESMIAZERR
B AFERAFERER
Bl :

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:

R-8--£+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2021

IREE

As at 31 December 2020

REE
Carrying AYE
amount  Fairvalue
TAL B
HK$'000 HK$'000

AT
Fair value
TAR
HK$'000

£-E
Level 1
TiEx
HK$'000

%-F
Level 2
TiEn
HK$'000

£-E F2E
Level 1 Level 2
T ThL
HK$'000 HK$'000

Carrying
amount

TR
HK$'000

SREE Financial assets
BHRE Investment securities
—REBBEHATIRE  — amortised cost 11206992 11,777,666 9,963,998 1,813,668  972993% 10548761 9498464 1050297
tREE Financial liabilities
BEMERES Dbt securities issued 115,652,967 116,310,363 - 116,310,363 61909148  62937,618 - 62937418

HErERIT AR TFERDER
NTTERERRR

)y ReEREHES

RelEHMESBRER
TR LR HAERBIE
BRI FBFR
AT ENERAE -
ERFR(FRABE D
RANEA) fhEt 2 FE
TBERERREREER
REBHNRITEETS
MERMGFRAEZ
TRATRE - Bt -
FHRORFEHEFNE
IRIEI(E

The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

(i) Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits
and are stated net of impairment allowance.
The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
6 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.
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Loans with special 100% guarantee under the
SFGS

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. With the 100% guarantee provided
by the Government to cover the default loss of
the loans, no impairment allowance is provided.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities are stated net of
impairment allowance. Fair value for investment
securities at amortised cost is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations, which
are the clean prices. Where this information is
not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar
credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

Other assets

These mainly represent receivables from
debt securities issued for settlement after the
reporting date with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.



(vii)

(viii)
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(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

These mainly represent the deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement
on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government in December 2003 and January 2004
with the fair value approximating the carrying
amount.

Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.
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3.7. EXEHE
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3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o to comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary) and the Insurance Authority for its
insurance subsidiaries,

. to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholder;

o to support the Group's stability and growth,

o to allocate capital in an efficient and risk-based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
shareholder; and

o to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the management in accordance with the
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-
based capital adeqguacy framework. The minimum Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the period,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
out in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.
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Pursuant to the Guidelines on the CAR, which is made
by reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules (BCR), the
calculation basis of capital ratio under the BCR follows
the basis of consolidation for financial reporting with the
exclusion of subsidiaries which are “regulated financial
entities” (e.g. insurance companies). It is because these
entities are supervised by a regulator and are subject to
the maintenance of adequate capital (e.g. solvency ratio) to
support business activities comparable to those prescribed
for banks under the BCR. The investment cost of these
unconsolidated regulated financial entities is deducted from
the capital base whilst the corresponding related exposures
are also excluded from the calculation of risk-weighted
assets.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR as at the end of the reporting period.

2021 2020

F#&T FAETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

R AN Share capital 9,500,000 7,000,000

B Reserves 9,057,471 8,630,527

BB Impairment allowance 13,772 8,985
Bk : Deductions:

— REEEMEA RN — Investment in regulated

K& subsidiaries (10,500,000) (8,000,000)

BARERERE Total capital base 8,071,243 7,639,512

BT B E Capital Adequacy Ratio 23.4% 37.3%
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38. SRS ERESRARBZHE 3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
TREE D RER KB HERE AR The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
MERFIEELHHN S RMEEN DR financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
BE EZTEENBEBEXRGFE the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position but
HEETSOREEUERIANES are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
WA © R A ERFEFFRE similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
B TR - RIBGUREMERE ER R The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
Bt N & #t o and net amounts, as well as provide additional information

on how such credit risk is mitigated.

RZBZ-£+ZA=1-H 7
As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
HBELAEREHBRRR
RAEE HimeE:
DS ER Related amount 45 Related amount
EEE not set off in REE not set offin
Carrying  the consolidated statement Carrying the consolidated statement
amounts of financial position* amounts of financial position*
onthe —————— onthe
consolidated {4 £MIA consolidated P SMIA
statementof  Derivative = BEEAR FE statementof Derivative ~ HeHHR T8
financial financial Cash Net financial financial Cash Net
position  instruments collateral amount’ position instruments collateral amount’
T Thx T TAR BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
TESBIAL Positive fair values for
EEAYE derivative financial
instruments 812,397 (196,767) (582,030) 33,600 797,352 (174,964) (620,969) 1419
LRAR Financial liabilities
iTEeRIAZ Negative fair values for
BYATE derivative financial
instruments 334,529 (196,767) (131,364) 6,398 281,230 (174,964) (25,328) 80,938

& [HER1E W R AEAR S B ISR 0 2R Y 86 # Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
S| B FRLEE T BEOH statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
HEEEEIRERAORNEHE liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
&/ BESE- similar agreements including CSA.

* FEEXFRAE RSB BEAN & Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
HRHESHEE BE BHEASE to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group's
MR SHEFEL B HREN counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
CRBME AEREAREEELH o position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1.

4.2.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess ECLS on
a regular basis. In determining ECLS, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. It is required to
exercise judgements in making assumptions and estimates
to incorporate relevant information about past events,
current conditions and forecast of economic conditions.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2021 is disclosed in Note 18.

Fair value of financial instruments

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable
market data. However, the placements with the Exchange
Fund are valued on the basis of valuation techniques which
are determined by reference to the estimated rates of
investment return, approximate the carrying value. Details of
the fair value measurement of financial instruments are set
out in Note 3.6.
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4.3

4.4,
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4.3.

4.4,

Provision for outstanding claims on insurance and
guarantee portfolios of general insurance business

The Group reviews its insurance and guarantee portfolios
to assess provision for outstanding claims, including claims
of which the amounts have not been determined and
claims arising out of incidents that have not been notified
to the insurer, known as “Incurred But Not Reported” and
related expenses for settling such claims. In determining
the provision for outstanding claims, the Group makes
judgement and assumptions including but not limited to
the loss severity rate applied, the economic climate and
the local property market in making estimation of the
payments which the Group is required to make in fulfilling
its obligations under the insurance and guarantee contracts.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating the
ultimate claim amount are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2021 is disclosed in Note 26.

Insurance contract liabilities of life insurance
business

The liability for insurance contracts is based on current
assumptions with a margin for risk and adverse deviation.
The main assumptions used relate to mortality, longevity,
expenses and discount rates, which are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2021 is disclosed in Note 26.
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4.5.

4.6.

Recognition of deferred tax asset for carried-
forward tax losses

The deferred tax assets include an amount of
HK$109,828,000 which relates to carried-forward tax losses
of the HKMCA and the HKMCI. The deferred tax assets
mainly relate to tax losses of the annuity business arising
from maintaining prudent statutory reserves based on
actuarial assumptions of the HKMCA and the accounting loss
of the HKMCI resulting from upfront booking of commission
expenses. The Group has concluded that the deferred
assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable
income based on the approved business plans and budgets
for the subsidiary. The insurance business is expected to
generate taxable income in the future. The losses can be
carried forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.

100% guarantee under the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme (100% SFGS)

As refer to Note 17, under 100% SFGS, eligible loans
originated by the participating lenders are sold to the Group,
and the Government provides a financial guarantee to the
Group on these loans. The loans are classified as financial
assets measured at amortised cost under HKFRS 9.

In formulating the accounting treatment of 100% SFGS,
the Group applied judgement on whether the loans
purchased from the participating lenders as recognised on
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
should be de-recognised as a result of the arrangement
with the Government; whether the contracts between the
participating banks and the Group and the contract between
the Government and the Group should be considered
together in the determination of accounting treatments; and
whether the contractual cash flow of the loans represent
“solely payments of the principal and interest” (SPPI).

When performing this assessment, the Group considers
several factors including, whether the Group has transferred
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the loans,
whether the contracts between the Government and Group
are considered together and whether the contractual cash
flows met the SPPI criteria etc.
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5. EEH 5. Segment information
AEETEEETANEBESEREARE The Group is principally engaged in asset purchase and servicing,
BR® - —RRBERASRBER - Kt general insurance and life insurance businesses in Hong Kong.
X% NN AREESUBABERMET Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the loan purchase
WESTE  REERBERIBEE/D and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from loan receipt are
BB ETHRE  BRABEEESE considered ancillary to asset purchase business.

TSR B 75 o

—RRETEARIRBRE  ZEREBR General insurance includes mainly mortgage insurance, reverse
FNPRERRER ASRBEEFS mortgage and SME financing guarantee businesses. Life insurance
¥ BEAENMPEEREEIEER includes annuity business. Asset purchase and servicing include
WEE TS MBI ITEEMER - loan acquisition business and other activities such as debt

issuance.

TRINTAEELED WA - BF R The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
Hith &R} o information for operating segments of the Group.

BEEER
HREBRE 2L
Asset Rk AERR Inter-

purchase General Life segment @t
and servicing insurance insurance  elimination Total
THT TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HZ-Z--F+-A=1—-HLEE Yearended 31 December 2021

FHBHA Net interest income 428,059 33,061 (6,232) - 454,888
BRI EREE Net insurance business results - (158,829)  (1,048,115) - (1,206,944)
HipA Other income 383,606 151,041 1,843,668 (232,105) 2,146,210
LEWA Operating income 811,665 25,273 789,321 (232,105) 1,394,154
mETH Operating expenses (377,719) (176,656) (169,626) 232,105 (491,896)
Rt ERINEE R Operating profit before impairment 433,946 (151,383) 619,695 - 902,258
HERE Charge of impairment allowances (7,533) (571) (81) - (8,185)
BE AR/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 426,413 (151,954) 619,614 - 894,073
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HE-Z_FE+-A=1—HILFEE Yearended 31 December 2020

General Life segment

and servicing insurance insurance elimination
THILT FHT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Total
B

HK$'000

FHSHA Net interest income 440,008 54,613 (6,895) - 487,726
BRI EREE Net insurance business results - (234,903) (980,309) - (1,215,212)
HibA Other income 125,348 112,746 777,834 (208,087) 807,841
ON Operating income 565,356 (67,544) (209,370) (208,087) 80,355
S Operating expenses (361,013) (200,740) (161,220) 208,087 (514,886)
ReORER LR Operating profit before impairment 204,343 (268,284) (370,590) - (434,531)
RERE Charge impairment allowances (4,709) (#16) (53 - (5178)
BHtanaF/ (88) Profit/(loss) before taxation 199,634 (268,700) (370,643) - (439,709)

REEER

HREB R DEREHE

Asset — Rk ABRRE Inter-
purchase General Life segment

and servicing insurance insurance  elimination

TiEx TiEx TAR TAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

@it
Total
TR
HK$'000

BR=B=-£+-A=+-H As at 31 December 2021
NEE Segment assets 138,942,104 15,699,117 21,070,791 (2,533,778) 173,178,234
SHERE Segment liabilities 130,872,298 12,750,605 13,891,314 (2,533,778) 154,980,439

; 7 E

Asset —fRiRk =05 Inter-

purchase General Segment
and servicing insurance insurance elimination Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZ-TF+=A=1-H As at 31 December 2020

PEEE Segment assets 76,782,095 9,456,458 13,482,802 (1,364,286) 98,357,069
AHEE Segment liahilties 69,145,740 6,385,999 9,330,540 (1,364,286) 83,497,993
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6. FEUWA 6. Interestincome

2021 2020

FET TFETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEREE Loan portfolio 131,780 145,147

AN AR/ NP EEREIER Loans with 100% SFGS 224,461 102,161
HehEHES Cash and short-term funds 171,344 432,570
FEHEERE Investment securities 378,563 478,408
906,148 1,158,286

7. FEBXZH 7. Interest expense

2020

FET

HK$'000

IRITER KRB EITERES Bank loans and debt securities issued 435,570 615,185
HEamRE Lease liabilities 2,429 1,094

Hih Others 13,261 54,281
451,260 670,560
REEHBLZHEBEASIEET( T -F Included within interest expenses are HK$451 million (2020:
&F: 670BHE ) WIFAAFEE LT AR HK$670 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value

mHEREE - through profit or loss.
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8. RIGEFEIWIEIR 8. Revenue account for insurance business

2021
- KRRk AERE —RRh AERH
General Life o General Lif
insurance insurance Total insurance insurance
TR TR TEL THL THx BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE (Gross premiums written
(BT RBzE 26(0)()) (Note and Note 26(a)(i) 3,036,000 3,003,443 6,039,443 2,072,030 2,537,928 4,609,958
BRERE (FE260)0) Reinsurance premiums (Note 26(a)() (196,845) - (196,845) (230,638) - (230,638)
RIREFE (e 26(a)() Net premiums written (Note 26(a)() 2,839,155 3,003,443 5,842,598 1,801,392 2,537,928 4,379,320
ARARENESFE Movement in unearned premiums, net (2,007,965) - (2,007,965) (1,386,597) - (1,386,597)
O ER B3 (Mt 26(a)()  Net premiums eamed (Note 26(a)(i) 831,190 3,003,443 3,834,633 454,795 2,537,928 2,992,723
MZEESTE  BAFIEE  Netclaims incurred, benefits paid and
REBEANEEEE movement in policyholders' liabilities
(BizE26()0) K MizE26(0)0)  (Note 26(a)(i) and Note 26(b)i)) (28,636) (4,050,814) (4,079,450) (23,959 (3,517,509) (3,541,468)
REREREREZE Net premiums earned after provisions 802,554 (1,047,371) (244,817) 430,836 (979,581) (548,745)
Aexit Commission expenses (1,017,721) (375) (1,018,096) (739,074) (518) (739,592)
HELH Levy expenses - (369) (369) - (210) (210)
BREATAENESH  Reinsurers' share of commission
expenses 56,338 - 56,338 73335 - 73335
BT HFERAES L Net commission and levy expenses (961,383) (744) (962,127) (665,739) (728) (666,467)
NBRESREES % Net premiums earned after
ORREFE commission and levy expenses (158,829) (1,048,115) (1,206,944) (234,903) (980,309) (1,215,212)
BiaE - Note:
R—REBREBMS EREXZERBIRBRELE For general insurance business, gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage
REERIRRER insurance cover on mortgage loans and on reverse mortgage loans.
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9. HUA 9. Other income
2021 2020
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R B HNE E S 17 5K W e Income from placements with
the Exchange Fund 1,991,151 889,208
EH =58 Exchange difference (457) 160,812
SR TEATEES)TFRE Net change in fair value of financial
instruments 161,496 (203,684)
IAAFEE (LT ABZED Net loss on investments at fair
WA EI8F R value through profit or loss (10,238) (64,597)
B R SH R AN B IR RO 3 Net gain on disposal of investments
W5 5a at amortised cost 3,235 11,074
ERER R EWA Dividend income from listed investments 215 17,998
T E AWA Administrative fee income 2,170 —
A, Others (1,362) (2,970)
2,146,210 807,841
CRTARAFEZESEENATZIENLE Change in fair value of financial instruments represented
M:OEEAAFELEHFNEHTAATF the aggregate of (i) HK$258 million fair value loss on hedging
BEEE258EAT(ZEFF : #=8.55 instruments designated as fair value hedge (2020: HK$855 million
BT R HIEE AFEREE2.631EET gain) and HK$263 million fair value gain on the hedged items
(ZZ=ZF : [{H1E84EHBIT) + R()=E (2020: HK$849 million loss); and (i) HK$156 million fair value gain
ZREEHRIINERBRERNFSRALE RS on derivatives mainly for hedging foreign currency exposures
FTAEMTTE T B AT EWE1.56 88T which are not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2020:
ZE-TF  BE207EBT) - WEE HK$207 million loss) and there was no fair value gain/loss on debt
ERAAFERLF AEBZNEETER securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or l0ss
BHANTENRE FBE(CEZF : BA (2020: HK$3 million l0ss).

30088 7T) °
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10. E&XH

10. Operating expenses

2021 2020
FH&x FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB : Staff costs:
— & REF — Salaries and benefits 322,812 308,680
— BRREHA — Pension costs
— A EHREE — defined contribution plans 18,710 17,686
BEWe Directors’ fees = -
MEFLHEAA Emoluments in respect of directors’
BIEEBHEMARE other services in connection with
mitF2ME the management of the affairs of
the Company:
— e EBNRIEA — Salaries, allowances and bonus 6,724 6,796
— RIRIRETEIFTE 2 3K — Retirement scheme contributions 661 661
e (M95E23) Depreciation (Note 23) 90,077 93,391
B 8 & ST AR TS Financial information services 12,731 12,035
B E Consultancy fees 40,966 26,450
MHEHENRES ST Marketing and advertising expenses 36,667 30,263
PWAE Premises 9,915 10,409
H gt i Other operating expenses 40,128 30,961
WEHD /B NEREER Recovery of operating expenses
RS from 100% SFGS (87,495) (22,446)
491,896 514,886
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1. ZEEDEN & 11. Auditor’s remuneration

2021 2020
FHT FH&7T
HK$'000 HK$'000

ZEEN S Auditor’s remuneration:
— BEZART — Audit services 4,738 4,388
— H M AR — Other services 1,821 2,229
6,559 6,617

12. BIEE A 12. Charge of impairment allowances
2020
FHETT
HK$'000
B ERE(D#) Charge/(write-back) of loan impairment
allowances:

— e REHRES (Mi313.2(c)) — Cash and short-term funds (Note 3.2(c)) 2,641 1,247

— BHIRE — Investment securities

— IR SR AN IR — amortised cost (Note 3.2(d)(i)
(Pt 5 3.2(d)(i)) 470 1,967
— AT EES T AEAM — FVOCI (Note 3.2(d)(ii)

2 HE Y (FEFE3.2(d)i0) (737) 1,024
— EFHEE (ME3.20) — Loan portfolio (Note 3.2(b)) 5,811 940
8,185 5,178
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13. $ilE
(a) FAWEBRMHBIES

13. Taxation

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents:
2021 2020
F#ET FH&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBENER Hong Kong profits tax
— BHENIA — Current tax 21,747 22,397
— R EERE — Adjustment in respect
of prior years (21,972) 595
(225) 22,992
EETIE Deferred taxation
—AFEEXE (RE) — Charge/(credit) for current
period 63,200 (100,577)
62,975 (77,585)

B HA R A MO (BT IR AR B s A IR
16.5% (=T ZF4F : 16.5%) 0 Fi =&
TR B ST ST - EERIBLAA
BIRIR165%( - T — T 4F : 16.5%)
NEBMERAE LT EEE o

AREBE BB ATE N R IRERRAE
BREGENBROSEOZENT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
period. Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

2020
FAETT
HK$'000
BREADEF(EE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 894,073 (439,709)
1216.5% (ZZE_Z4F : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate
IR G E of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) 147,522 (72,552)
HIEE - Tax effect of;
— AT AU — income not subject to taxation (72,977) (113,527)
— DA IR A 3 2 — expenses not deductible
for taxation purposes 20,281 95,865
— BEFERE — adjustment in respect
of prior years (21,972) 595
— Hfth — other (9,879) 12,034
BmELE (RE) Taxation charge/(credit) 62,975 (77,585)
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(b) HAFBSRRRAMBIREES

(b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

2020

TAT
HK$'000

ERMREEE GTA[HMEE]) Current tax assets
(included in “Other assets”) 17,767 17,847
EETIEEE Deferred tax assets 116,547 179,747
134,314 197,594
EHNEAE Current tax liabilities 136,260 136,745

RZE-—F+—A=+—HEK=F
“TFE+-A=+—H WELEFE
AARBHEELERIE ©

EREBHE(EE) ABENERAKA

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and

DRERNEFSHOT : the movements during the year are as follows:
piiE3 RERE
BIEHRE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances
tax and RBER okl
depreciation provisions Tax losses Total
TET TET TET TEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i s R = As at 1 January 2020 8,209 (4,732) (82,647) (79,170)
RIER AR/ (FFA) Charged/(credited) to income
statement 13 (5,125) (95,465) (100,577)
RZE-_ZEF+-F=+—H Asat31December 2020 8,222 (9,857) (178,112) (179,747)
RIER ARG/ (FA) Charged/(credited) to income
statement 1,433 (6,517) 68,284 63,200
WRZZE--f#+-HA=+—H Asat31December 2021 9,655 (16,374) (109,828) (116,547)

ST BB EE R RN A B SR AR
BRI T RN ER T HRHR -
KB IR TG 5 18 T SR A0

RtT—EAR  EBEAERELEHRER
BE/AERERE -
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Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
sufficient future taxable profits will be available for
realisation. The unused tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/
liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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14. RehEEs 14. Cash and short-term funds

2021 2020
THET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITRE Cash at banks 2,884,469 852,013
RITEEFER Time deposits with banks 42,369,800 21,050,574
He hEHES B Gross cash and short-term funds 45,254,269 21,902,587
He NEHES ) RBERE Impairment allowance on cash and
(Ffi7E3.2(0)) short-term funds (Note 3.2 (c)) (4,887) (2,246)
45,249,382 21,900,341
mReRERME  RehERRESEHE For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
BREATRIAR R=EA AR cash equivalents comprise the following balances with original

maturities of three months or less.

2021 2020
Tz FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R1TIRE Cash at banks 2,884,469 852,013
RITEETFER Time deposits with banks 10,920,800 13,647,782
Be hERREIEB Cash and cash equivalents 13,805,269 14,499,795
15. FEWHI2 REER 15. Interest and remittance receivables

LA & IB H) FE MR B, Interest receivables from:
— FEEHE L — interest rate swap contracts 583,549 282,537
— BHERE — investment securities 103,164 107,855
— RITEHFER — time deposits with banks 19,906 15,270
B E Y ERF B X Interest receivables and instalments,

D EA R in transit from loan portfolio 164,653 81,605

871,272 487,267
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16.

4=

11

(a)

$&MTH

FTETRIER

AEBERATITET RS AEH
W Bl AR -

EREHAORERRBHATELE
TERE RIS o EINE M AGE - B
B R A R H R A — A S R EHREL
A—HBRSRENEG - HEHEHE
WM R mEAaER - BRET
BN ZERZF TS RERA
T ARENEERRARZHFR
EERTEEEMBEERRANNE

A - REBRBRENEBER S
FREREEKS - FFESR AR

i
N

o

ETRESRIANERESE AR
fRE MR RIER R TARZHE—E
FEEREVEAE - MEAR MRS R B AR
RERENTHRATEZRNAF
& - Bt - AR RS EE R
EEHEBRAR - BEE TSR RE
TIRHEIGRRAOKE) - STET AR
HARBEELAN(BE) LT (A
BINTE - TESRTANGLK
FECEMETE - AN 2
BE  ROIETASREENBEYZ
NFHAE - AIRE PR ATRIKED o Frfs
BNTETAERTFEERN T

16. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency forwards are commitment to purchase or sell
foreign currency at a pre-specified exchange rate on a future
date. Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group's credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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ah/
2ReH ATE ¢ B ATE
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values

notional BE 8% notional BE af&
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities

TR FET FHT THT T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() THAFBEHEH AN () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

fTETA for accounting purposes
s Interest rate Swaps 12,555,407 40,407 (82) 13,846,440 14,917 (1,204)
EikaE Currency swaps 4,637,216 - (94,966) 2,900,016 190 (224,458)
EEEBAN Currency forwards 364,427 114 (157) - - -
40,521 (95,205) 15,107 (225,682)
(i) ATEERTETR (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
% Interest rate swaps 48,052,689 213547  (121,583) 28,251,058 404,905 (2,001)
S Currency swaps 41,497,986 485124  (117,741) 18913027 377,340 (53,515)
698,671  (239,324) 780,245 (55,516)
(i) RERmERHTETR (i) Cash flow hedge derivatives
EikEE Currency swaps 3,385,815 73,205 - 269,53 - 32
73,205 - - (32)
ERATAETABE,/ Total recognised derivative assets/
(888 (iabilities) 812,397  (334,529) 797,352 (281,230)
(b) #idhiEE) (b) Hedging activities
WOTE TAER AT EEHNIRE R Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
¥ piEEREMmE STETAA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
IRERT S ¥R ERE ©
iy AFEEHF (i)  Fair value hedges
AEEMNAFEGHREEBRRE The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of
BRREERBBITEEESFA interest rate and currency swaps that are used to
TEMERBE B FT 5 28 protect interest rate risk and foreign currency risk
1) 2= [3 e A0 I 2 ez A 1) = D resulting from any potential change in fair value of
BHkEH o underlying debt securities issued.
(i) BESREH (i)  Cash flow hedges
AEEFEABREREHANE The Group hedged the portion of foreign exchange
& e B R A ONEE ST E A € Bl risks arising from variability of cash flows from foreign
TERSREBAEERINE currency denominated financial instruments using
[RBREBSD © currency swaps under cash flow hedge.
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17.

FNERBRERGETHES
BREBEER

AEER-_Z_ZEHRHEAIAREF )
REERETE - B E EFED /N
AW AR L miNAREL N HFeHem
BH - femABRDEEEFAMEE

RIFUEETE] - ERBSENETHRBIL
REHERE - ZE 2B EFTEBER A
BEERENTAAAKEHEBREN -
ZEER BB 2REER -

fE R R R RE BN TR F F E 2.5% X
NHE - ZEERNEBEHNBRAEEESE
MESRA LA —REERITHRAXE
ERXERT -

ZEEREFEFTMRESF » EREEA
BERE_THEAESTER -

B BRI EREERAENEEERD
EREOBBRABNRERA®RM - B2
RBUTFHE M RERE N - S EERRE
B AEEEREMBCUERFNE
NESBEER MU RERBENREK
A —REERITHFAX - Lt e %r S
R () HERXBT - AEBEE AL

IUES ]
EEZF’:EDD °

ERYETERETEIAY

=

17.

Loans with special 100% guarantee under the
SFGS

The Group introduced special 100% SFGS in 2020. This measure
aims to alleviate the burden of paying employee wages and rents
by small and medium-sized enterprises which are suffering from
reduced income, thereby help minimise enterprise shutting down
and layoffs.

Under this scheme, loans are originated by participating lenders.
Upon origination, these participating lenders would sell the loans
to the Group without recourse. These loans are fully guaranteed by
the Hong Kong Government.

An interest rate of the Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum is
charged to the borrowers. These loan interest, net of the funding
costs and relevant general operating and administrative expenses
incurred by the Group, are passed to the Government.

The maximum repayment period of the loan under the guarantee
is 8 years, with an option principal moratorium for the first twenty-
four months.

Accordingly, loan default losses are covered by the Government's
guarantee in relation to loans with special 100% SFGS and no
impairment allowance is recognised in view of the minimal default
risk of the Government. All loan interest received is set aside to
meet the funding costs, general operating and administrative
expenses in relation to the purchase and servicing of the loans of
the Group. The remaining balance of the interest received, if any,
will be passed to the Government. The Group is responsible for the
operation of the product.
2021 2020
FATT
HK$'000

THERT
HK$'000

Loans with special 100% SFGS

71,063,154 36,084,713
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18. BERMESFHE 18. Loan portfolio, net

(a) ERASEIEE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
2021 2020
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
E%%ﬁﬁ%%*ﬁ HE Residential mortgage portfolio 3,623,063 4,093,019
EIRIBE A Non-mortgage portfolio
HEZBER Infrastructure loans 4,813,509 2,796,528
TH BE e U iR 3 Hire purchase receivable 136,681 164,132
EAh Others 3,036 5,656
8,576,289 7,059,335
BB EREME (FT:E3.2(0)) Allowance for loan impairment
(Note 3.2(b)) (5,476) (2,456)
8,570,813 7,056,879
% Hzﬁﬁ"{%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁié KA A HAR[E Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
ERSEBKOBEOLLAT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:
2021 2020
B ERER %E{Ef?m Total allowance for loan
HEBRENE D impairment as a percentage
of the gross loan portfolio 0.06% 0.03%
ELERRERER EZERERR Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking
HERITE ° into account the current market value of the collateral.
2021 2020
WEERHEE B %ﬁfﬁ‘)“m Gross impaired loan portfolio
HEBRBENED as a percentage of gross
loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01%
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(b) ER4A S REYFHREERIRR (b) Hire purchase receivable included in loan portfolio
2021
RIKFERFR L RIRHAE K RIKFEWFE 2
AIBRE FIE WA RIEMAEE
Present value Interest Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FHET FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FEUWFRIA Amounts receivable:
——FR — within one year 16,111 2,351 18,462
——FRERFNA — after one year but within
five years 49,877 6,881 56,758
— hF1& — after five years 70,693 5,514 76,207
136,681 14,746 151,427
2020
X FE AR A R IRERFRI
RIERE FEWA
Present value Interest
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
TET TFET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWSRIR Amounts receivable:
— K — Within one year 18,982 2,833 21,815
——FRERERFA — after one year but within
five years 58,704 8,262 66,966
— Ak — after five years 86,446 7,077 93,523

164,132 18,172 182,304
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19. EBHT/E

(a)

UaEEZETAR2EI
AR HIRE

BAFED IR ERE S

19. Investment securities

(a)

Investment securities at FVOCI

2021 2020
TAET

HK$'000

FTEx
HK$"000

Debt securities at fair value

REBE™ Listed in Hong Kong 754,458 1,102,806

REBRIN TR Listed outside Hong Kong 1,604,114 1,732,214

JE LT Unlisted 1,288,610 1,583,942
AAFEEZEEAREMEME  Total FVOCI securities

W B 35 5 4R RE 3,647,182 4,418,962

AR SFEZCE AE M 2R E ) E
SERETES  ETANESRE
ERAERMNE - MAKEFH IR
B R 2 ZBEA M B RRIEB K
ReatmBRenERHESREENE
IH o

RBEITHBERIDITARFERCE
AEMEE W RO ESFAT -

FVOCI securities comprise debt securities where the
contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and
the objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

FVOCI securities are analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:

2021 2020

FE T FHT

HK$’'000 HK$'000

SR1T R H M mhiE Banks and other financial institutions 2,649,426 3,411,319
NEEE Corporate entities 840,180 847,991
AR I Central governments 157,576 159,652
3,647,182 4,418,962
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AT EEEH AR 2 RS

The movement in FVOCI securities is summarised as follows:

A ST
2020
T
HK$'000
»—HA—8 As at 1 January 4,418,962 4,920,402
#n Additions - 623,344
R Redemption (766,854) (1,136,404)
Y Amortisation 710 779
NFEEHE) Change in fair value (23,755) 30,385
HNEKTEE 5, =58 Exchange difference 18,119 (19,544)
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 3,647,182 4,418,962

BRRE FEEERAEEEER
% B0 B R Y L 3.2(d) BB

(b)  PAAFEEM bt \EEANEESHRE

BAHEIIRNZ HAEER
EehEHERERFRES

Information on the impairment, credit quality and the
Group's exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 3.2(d).

(b)

Investment securities at FVPL

2021 2020
TAT
HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

Exchange-traded funds and real estate
investment trusts at fair value

REB L™ Listed in Hong Kong 10,710 265,769
PARAFEE{LEE ABZRAES  Total FVPL securities
4=y 10,710 265,769

78R B TR MR SRR T B
AT EBCH AR A S RS
ZHFEERS REEREETE
SERMBESRES P AR TES
fest AfB2% -
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The Group classifies other investment securities in exchange-
traded funds and real estate investments trusts at FVPL,
which do not quality for measurement at either amortised
cost or FVOCI.
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WAFEZEETABENESNED) The movement in FVPL securities is summarised as follows:
BT -

Sl = = As at 1 January 265,769 378,803

340 Additions - 1,565

HeE Sale (246,384) (44,989)

NEEES Change in fair value (8,726) (69,564)

HNEEBE 5 = 5 Exchange difference 51 (46)

Rt+t-—A=+—8H As at 31 December 10,710 265,769
() IREBERAIIRNESHIRSE (c) Investment securities at amortised cost

RS ARG IR R E7555 % Debt securities at amortised cost

REE L™ Listed in Hong Kong 6,858,248 6,704,824
RBEBBINET Listed outside Hong Kong 2,410,668 2,032,137
9,268,916 8,736,961
JELET Unlisted 1,941,968 996,397
R4 S K AN B ) 2B A Gross investment securities at
B EEE amortised cost 11,210,884 9,733,358
R ERARTINRAFE A ER  Impairment allowance on investment
T E R (M EE3.2(d)) securities at amortised cost
(Note 3.2(d)) (3,892) (3,422)
FR 4 S AR AR B R B 35 5 4A RE Total amortised cost securities 11,206,992 9,729,936
AEEERERFEATEEZBR The Group classifies investment securities as at amortised
B A EREARRE D ERIREHK cost only if both of the following criteria are met:
AT
. FBEANEBRRIEEEEN . the asset is held within a business model with the
WEREHRERE & objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and
. RIRE G IEE B HIR R . the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
ERENDEHEARI RS cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
REBASEOFE - interest on the principal outstanding.
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TR AT HE Rl o AT HE SH K AN B R Amortised cost securities are analysed by categories of
EE L CINE issuers as follows:
2020
T T
HK$'000
RITREAM S B E Banks and other financial institutions 2,725,359 1,927,019
NGRS Corporate entities 5,581,354 6,113,080
NEHIE Public sector entities 1,253,154 356,827
FR R B Central governments 1,651,017 1,336,432
11,210,884 9,733,358
JREESH K AN 51 R BY 38 5 9 S B f i 4n The movement in amortised cost securities is summarised
T as follows:
2021 2020
TExT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—HA—H As at 1 January 9,733,358 12,035,961
1240 Additions 2,744,548 773,375
HENER Sales and redemption (1,360,601) (3,025,969)
b s Amortisation 1,265 (1,188)
HNESTE 5 A= R Exchange difference 92,314 (48,821)
R+-=—A=+—8 As at 31 December 11,210,884 9,733,358
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20. SMEEEEFER

AEEEBESFLARREEREAR
RINEESTFRA B AEENURFERZ L
SFABREHNEREE R —F+=
A=+—H ' INEESTFRELB286E
BT (ZETF 163188 7L) » B2fElke
BER/UVMBET(ZTTF 14388
To) I EREFHRAERIKE 2HE R KR
BRI A - *‘“EPélﬂf%flzﬁzﬁ’“ﬂﬁiﬂl
T?HEAZ“(%fI)\Hﬁfé?JJ\H‘%'JE’]ﬁ
BHEDRBEEBFESRRIRIEE 17?1?’&
BIRE R ERBIFHK

SINEESFRRENINEESNREES
REHIERES  UREERERARS -
SNEERSFHREREIZFETE - LREH
AME  EHRXTDRBEIREASBENTF
BEHEHEN EFE= iﬁﬁﬂuﬂ a0
FHWRE(TRRBO%)HE  UBRBER
EopRHEREAEME  BHREDRE
AEEH R INERREEE

20. Placements with the Exchange Fund

The Group has classified the placements of the HKMCA and the
HKMCI with the Exchange Fund as financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2021, the
balance of the placements with the Exchange Fund amounted
to HK$28.6 billion (2020: HK$16.3 billion), comprising a total
principal sum of HK$24.9 billion (2020: HK$14.8 billion) plus income
earned and accrued but not yet withdrawn as at the reporting
date, of which HK$4.7 billion represented the placement made
by the Company on behalf of the Government for the operation
of PLGS and the remaining portion was the premium and capital
placements made by the HKMCA and the HKMCI.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are invested in the
Investment Portfolio and Long-Term Growth Portfolio of the
Exchange Fund, subject to a lock-up period. The rate of return on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is determined annually.
For Investment Portfolio, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on the portfolio over
the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year
Government Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
Zero percent), whichever is the higher. With respect to the Long-
Term Growth Portfolio, the rate of return is determined based on
the current year time-weighted rate of return.
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21. MIBATIRE 21. Interests in subsidiaries
RZEBE-_—F+-_A=1+—H " KAFH Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
FEMBRARFBEAT - December 2021 are as follows:

HARAN

KEAR

BAA (FHKEA)

(HERBA) Fris R H

FristmRpAm EFixS

ERTRARRAFHE BAE Percentage of

(RAwER) Percentage of shares held by

Bl e Particulars of issued and shares heldby  the Company's

Place of TEEEK fully paid up share capital the Company subsidiary

incorporation Principal activities (Class of shares) (or its nominee)  (or its nominee)

BARBERARAR B RASEETREERERER 10000008 (EER) 100% TiER

HKMC Mortgage Management Limited Hong Kong ERIRE  KEENEEZ  HKS1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A

HAERRE  RRERS
BN RREFRER ML
ﬂi&

Mortgage purchase and
servicing, servicing of
outstanding microfinance
oans, and origination of
reverse mortgage loans and
nolicy reverse mortgage
|oans, all for the Group

BARERBBRAR Bt —fRRRES 3,000,000,0007 7z (& @R 100% TER
HKMC Insurance Limited Hong Kong General insurance business HK$3,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
EBESERAT B RBRBER 7,500,000,00077¢ (& k) 100% TR
HKMC Annuity Limited Hong Kong Long term insurance business  HK$7,500,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
ERRETARE (5 ) BRAR Bk RREEERT 1,000 7T (£ k) TR NER
HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited* Hong Kong In member’s voluntary liquidation HK$1,000 (Orclinary) N/A N/A
Bauhinia MBS Limited* HEHS hEEl G 1,000% 7 (E@k) @A A
Cayman Islands In member’s voluntary liquidation US$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
HKMC Premier Solutions Limited B4 AAEERESHEERERE  100BT(ERR) TiEm 100%
Hong Kong PR AR B i HK$100 (Orcinary) N/A
Provision of marketing and
business development
services and related facilities
t0 the Group
* RIEE BCA &SI >>MT§E1 ELRREE @ These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 to the
ERMBRE - BLARRKLEHARAIE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares
REVIRIBE %ﬂbﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁzi MARARIME in these companies which are set up for the operation of mortgage-backed
ERAEEARNRN - EBRBIEFRE securitisation programmes guaranteed by the Company. HKMC Funding
(85—) AR &) & Bauhinia MBS Limited % Bl Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited ceased businesses on 2
R —FNAZHR=ZZ=_—F+—A September 2021 and 8 November 2021 respectively.
NBFIEEEER -
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22. FEIRIE - IR R HEMEE 22. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2021
THET
HK$’'000
NAlEFEEH Corporate club debentures 910 910
EEZ W EKEIE CSA receivables 132,381 27,061
EERHREENEETES Receivables from securities issued for
Y FE W k18 settlement after the reporting date 1,761,894 101,122
H 1t fiE Yo g IE Other receivables 312,785 275,637
Hih &&= Other assets 59,567 59,641
2,267,537 464,371
= s .
23. EIEEE 23. Fixed assets
(i) BEETEEEH (i) Movement in fixed assets
BREENE
NEREEE WAERE
Right-of-use GREEE
assets on office
leased FHEWEXE  equipment, hat:d
properties Leasehold furniture {7 Motor L]
forownuse improvement  andfixtures  Computers vehicle Total
T#n T#n T#n T#n Ti#n T#x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=Z-FF—F—HMKA Costasat 1 lanuary 2020 105,090 44,818 14,014 248700 775 413397
1 Additions 194,282 16,675 439 29,476 - 240,922
s/ e Written off/disposals (90,481) - - (5,020) - (95,501)
W-ZE-FF+-H=+—H Costasat31December 2020
HR A 208,891 61,493 14,503 273,156 775 558,818
1 Additions 8,930 15,626 8,578 37141 409 70,684
s/ e Written off/disposals (16,487) (22,077) (4,295) 37) - (42,896)
R=B=-£+=ZA=1+—HF Costasat 31 December 2021
KA 201,334 55,042 18,786 310,260 1,184 586,606
RZE=FE-F-A Accumulated depreciation as at
MEFHNE 1 January 2020 (53,877) (35,417) (10,335) (203,129) (775) (303,533)
& (f710) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (58,362) (5823 (.77 (26,935) - 93,391)
s/ Le Written off/disposals 90,481 - - 5,020 - 95,501
WZB-EE+-A=1—8 Accumulated depreciation as at
HRGHTE 31 December 2020 (22,259) (41,240) (12,106) (225,044) (775) (301,423)
& (7 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (49,29¢) (5,665) 2,612) (32,475) (29) (90,077)
W /e Written off/disposals 16,487 22,036 4,275 37 - 42,835
M=B=-£+=A=1+-8 Accumulated depreciation as at
WRHHE 31 December 2021 (55,067) (24,869) (10443  (257.482) (804)  (348.665)
RZZ--F+=-B=+—H Asat31December 2021
%N Cost 201,334 55,042 18,786 310,260 1,184 586,606
ZHIE Accumulated depreciation (55,067) (24,869) (10,443) (257,482) (804) (348,665)
RERE Net book amount 146,267 30,173 8,343 52,778 380 237,941
R-Z-FE+-A=+-8 Asat31December 2020
A Cost 208,891 61,493 14,503 273,156 775 558,818
2:tE Accumulated depreciation (22,258) (41,240) (12,1006) (225,044) (775) (301,423)
REFE Net book amount 186,633 20,253 2,397 48112 - 257,395
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i) HE (ii) Leases
B KT R A R E RS The statement of financial position shows the following
s amounts relating to leases:
2020
FH&TT
HK$'000
FEREEE —BF Right-of-use assets — Buildings 146,267 186,633
HERE Lease liabilities
——FR — within one year 37,692 35,246
— MR —F — over one year 109,725 140,488
147,417 175,734

RAREE {5 FAHEE E# 18,930,000
Bt ( =& = Z F : 194,282,000
JT) °

FeERERITAERBEENSED

1

ERREENE — 25

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were
HK$8,930,000 (2020: HK$194,282,000).

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

2020

TET
HK$'000

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets — Buildings

49,296 58,862

Interest expense

2,429 1,094

R-ZT——F HERSHAHEES
39,676,000 w( = & = & F:
54,731,000/ 7T) ©

FEEEEETHAE - MERES
AN BT R
I -

RASELE LT SN MEHEE
HeBREERKILRERE - KED
BHERRIEERETHARET
&£ - MIFERMMHEA -
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The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was HK$39,676,000
(2020: HK$54,731,000).

The Group leases various offices and rental contracts are
mainly made for fixed periods of 6 years but may have
extension options as described below.

Extension and termination options are included in property
leases of the Group for operational flexibility. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Annual Report 2021



24. FESFIR

24. Interest payable

2021 2020

FET TAET
HK$°000 HK$'000

AT RENENHNE

Interest payable from:

— BRITERES — debt securities issued 632,241 292,172
— FIEEBHEH — interest rate swap contracts 55,091 49,135
— HEmBaE — other liabilities 910 1,194

688,242 342,501

25. FE{TIRIE « FEfTRIZ R E{MhE 25. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
= liabilities

2021 2020

FHExT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

JE SR IE N2 B A St Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,788,966 1,520,339
EMmEE Other liabilities 19,382,767 7,872,016
HE&E Lease liabilities 147,417 175,734
Hofh Other provision 65,001 73,309
21,384,151 9,641,398

HthBEETERERNEBEERFET
B4 BB i (K 32) RAARFEE R
=T8I (KT 5= 29()) AT B M IR B R SR (B,
kR = R AE R S2) 14,831,893,000 7 7T
— T —F 4 :3,330,216,000/8 ) » K
AR EE=F+_AR_ZTTNF—
AEBREENRBEREE LN
Mo RIIEIER (B 4,550,874,0008 L (—E - F
£ 1 4,541,800,0007 7T ) °

Other liabilities represented mainly the guarantee fee
and fund received (net of claims and related expenses) of
HK$14,831,893,000 (2020: HK$3,330,216,000) under the special
concessionary measures of the SFGS (Note 32) and the PLGS (Note
29(a)), and the deferred consideration of HK$4,550,874,000 (2020:
HK$4,541,800,000) used for credit enhancement on the mortgage
loans purchased from the Government in December 2003 and
January 2004.
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26. RIGEBERBIRIGEE 26. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

2021 2020
8 BRR o 8 BiRR FE

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
THR TEx TERT AT AL FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—RRBE General insurance:
ARAREREREBESG Provision for uneamed premiums
and guarantee fees 5,109,451 481,508 4,627,943 2,989,183 369,205 2,619,978
RARRER Provision for outstanding claims:
— OB/ (BRE)BR — claims reported/(recovery) - - - 109 54 55
—BEABRBBRE — claims incurred but not reported 92,386 9,541 82,845 59,603 8,243 51,360
92,386 9,541 82,845 59,712 8,297 51,415
5,201,837 491,049 4710788 304889 377502 2671393
AERRE: Life insurance:
REBBAEE Policyholders' liabilities 11,582,453 - 11,582,453 8,138,076 = 8,138,076
16,784,290 491,049 16,293,241 11,186,971 377,502 10,809,469
(a) —RRIRIRZERS (a) Generalinsurance
i) FRHRERERERARES (i)  Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
oW premiums and guarantee fees

2021
8 Bk #E 8 FE

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TR TiEn TiEn TETL TAL T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R—A—H Asat 1 January 2,989,183 369,205 2,619,978 1,435,165 201,784 1,233,381
BYERE (H78) Premiums written (Note 8) 3,036,000 196,845 2,839,155 2,072,030 230,638 1,841,392
ERHRE (fiz8) Premiums earned (Note 8) (915,732) (84,542)  (831,190) (518,012 (63.217) (454,795)
W+=ZA=1-A As at 31 December 5,109,451 481,508 4,627,943 2,989,183 369,205 2,619,978
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(i) FRRERBESBOHTWOT (ii)

Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding

claims
2021
21 BRR BE % 38
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsur Net
T Fin T BT TAL T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
itz = Asat 1 January 59,712 8,297 51,415 38,991 71,207 31,784
BRER Claims paid (729) (55) (674) (6,397) (1,336) (5,061)
EREER Claims recovery 4,286 818 3,468 1471 738 733
BES/(E#) Bz (Fi58) : Claims incurred/(written back) (Note 8);
—CHRER — claims reported (3,666) (817) (2,849) 3,140 263 2877
—BEEBARHFHE — claims incurred but not reported 32,783 1,298 31,485 22507 1425 21,082
29,117 481 28,636 25,647 1,688 23959
R+=A=1t-H As at 31 December 92,386 9,541 82,845 59,712 8297 51,415
(b) ANSRE (b) Life insurance
(i) REFEAEBERBOM (i) Analysis of movement in policyholders’ liabilities
2021 2020
£ ) BRR FE E24 B T8
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Thx FEL THx T BT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
w—A—H Asat 1 January 8,138,076 - 8,138,076 5,027 483 - 5,027 433
BRBREREMFE Claims and benefits paid (606,437) - (606,437) (406,916) - (406,916)
PEABZREEREA  Claimsincurred and movement in
BEZE(fi1s) policyholders’ liabilties (Note 8) 4,050,814 - 4,050,814 3517509 - 3517509
R+=B=1t—H As at 31 December 11,582,453 - 11,582,453 8,138,076 - 8,138,076
iy EEBRIJ[REEBEETNSE (i) Key assumptions and reserving approach

HRRBRRAE Y  BERBRK For long term insurance contracts, economic

SRERNLERH - FEER

BINE S EERE R -

BREARBERR KRR E
EEDIABEBRBRE(RBAA
REEE) R RIDEIR B - BLE R
ABSRBREETRAKER TR
FREMERETHE TR
RERREEE -

assumptions are continually reviewed and updated.
Non-economic assumptions are reviewed at least
annually.

Based on generally accepted actuarial principles and in
accordance with Hong Kong Insurance (Determination
of Long Term Liabilities) Rules of the Insurance
Ordinance, the valuation of individual life liabilities
was carried out using the Modified Net Level Premium
Valuation method, subject to a minimum of the
surrender value.
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(iif)

(iv)

FISHBR
A

{8 FAHKA18%E T= R K (&3 T
EREREGEAMARE) - Wit
SEMBFETRBREATF
REFHR 15%REE N -

K

REEHRBRE(RHAEES
E) R BIDE 13 (BN Tt B B8
TIEETIREAE) -

BEXH

BEXHBRHRTDERABLLS
MEMG - RZTBE-_—F &
B RSB TR AE N - i
REg B ERMN20E BT -

fhERIREE

HEFEERE &L E RS K E
R {E B R 3F N R3F
BREENEEBRHBREKS
KR ELL B - IEE B HIfE
AISFEABENEERRER
HER - EIE R EENFH K
HEREEHNEER LS
FRESNEEBREBREX
WFEESE - LA EARAR
HRBRE(RBABRET) R
AYVERESBEESRENS
BiE| - HEMREIN(ZF
ZEF 4%) o

(iii)

Non-economic assumptions
Mortality

HKA18 mortality table adjusted by mortality
improvement and selection loading is used, with
loading of 15% for provision for adverse deviations on
top of best estimate mortality assumptions.

Lapse

In accordance with Section 13 of the Hong Kong
Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Rules (i.e. no allowance is made for the voluntary
discontinuance).

Renewal expense

The renewal expense assumption is based on internal
experience study. The renewal expense assumption is
slightly increased in 2021 and the insurance liabilities
has increased by HK$0.2 million.

Valuation interest basis

The valuation interest rate is the weighted proportion
of yield on existing assets and reinvestment yield
expected of assets bought within 3 years of valuation
date and 3 years after valuation date. The reinvestment
yield of assets bought within 3 years of valuation date
is obtained by taking the average of yield on current
assets and reinvestment yield of assets expected to be
bought 3 years after valuation date. This methodology
is in compliance with the Hong Kong Insurance
(Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Rules and the
actuarial guidance provided by the Actuarial Society of
Hong Kong. The valuation interest rate is 4% (2020: 4%).
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27. ERTREES

27. Debt securities issued

2021 2020
TAET

HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

TR 88 B A Bl iR I BT R 35 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
P HIES MTN 24,928,315 17,480,014
IR A GIIR BB 5 4% Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 24,928,315 17,480,014
EEREHER I LIRS RE Y Debt securities designated as hedged
WEBES items under cash flow hedge
R HEAfE S MTN 3,452,590 271,205
HEEAEMIER WA SR EH  Total debt securities designated as
KBTS 8 5 1B E hedged items under cash flow hedge 3,452,590 271,205
EEBEHER S LLAFEEH Debt securities designated as hedged
W EES items under fair value hedge
BT AETHEIES DIP notes 1,080,122 1,222,216
FREAE S MTN 86,191,940 42,935,713
¥ETE A¥HHRIA B ijA’D\SPTE%ﬁEF Total debt securities designated as
B E S5 hedged items under fair value hedge 87,272,062 44,157,929
BRI EISE SRR Total debt securities issued 115,652,967 61,909,148

TTEBEZFNESBANT

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

2021 2020

THET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

n—HA—H As at 1 January 61,262,254 39,912,212
1T Issuance 109,469,731 58,372,069
D=l E Less: Redemption (55,532,806) (37,027,251)
GNESFE 5, = KA Exchange difference 69,655 5,224
ZEBEERE Total nominal value 115,268,834 61,262,254
ﬂiﬁﬁiéﬁﬁ;% Unamortised portion of discount (77,690) (78,166)
N EFEE Fair value adjustment 461,823 725,060
R+—-_HA=+—H As at 31 December 115,652,967 61,909,148
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REEBEITHES : Notes issued during the year comprise:
RHIE S
MTN
TET
HK$'000
BEITEEEE Amount issued at nominal value 109,469,731
B U E A Consideration received 109,360,016
FIAEETHNERRE ST B AR E R All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
B MBOXSEEBESEERE R Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
LBECRIEFBRMERSE - working capital and refinancing.
28. &k 28. Share capital
2{020]
FATT
HK$'000
BETRERE Issued and fully paid:
20 (BRAR T A% 2 billion ordinary shares 9,500,000 7,000,000
AR an T The movement in share capital is summarised as follows:
FET
HK$'000
RZE_EF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2020 7,000,000
AE Capital injection 2,500,000
N-—EBE-_—F+=-B=+—H As at 31 December 2021 9,500,000
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29. EBFEANTIIIMNEKRRK S

@)

RNA R RHE 2 ENE A R BBTLHN
BEESMEERES - FN - RNEHEHE
BHABALAI I RBEFNERR S
T~

HRFEREEEESERNRSE
ETIIEIR

() AEERAFERERIEF
REEZFEATREHTE R
ERERBREESE RSN
BRBREI10EBTL(ZE_Z
& 1808BT) ¢

iy ANEBRAFEEE22/08
BIL(ZE_ZF : 2400875
TIEAE  EAREESE
BEFAEIHNER :

(i) AABRAFEHMTI0OEST
(ZZE-ZTF:608HBT) TE
BEER  EARESATNR
BE

(ivy ¢REBEEFABINEESR
ARERERREER  RZZ
—EF+ ABEEHI0ESET
REE0EBTL R
4+ -_A=+—H¥EEX
EERBRENFNE(ZEZ
TF MAHE) &

v) RZZEZ—F~A=+NRB:
CREEEEFRIMNEE DM
RAREEB BRI BHNA
EPARBRFABRESFESR
ANEREEINEE - At - £ 5
EIE B FERIMNEE & #E &
HEARNENEABINE S A H
=E 1S ERETIERARA (K L
MEHEBFEAREE251ES
TLi& - IR AN & B A 2001878
THHR) BEMERERAR
ARABARES R AMEINE
E - MARBIEERHZRBS
FERAAEABEEINESIE
BERAE  BNEAREDRS
FEARIMERNENBA—E
IR o

29. Material related party transactions

@)

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are wholly
owned by the Government for the account of the Exchange
Fund. During the year, the Group entered into or maintained
material transactions with the related parties as follows:

Transactions with the HKMA, a Government-related entity,
included the following:

(i)  the Group paid a total fee amount of HK$1.9 million for
the year (2020: HK$1.8 million) to the HKMA in respect
of custodian and clearing agent services from the
Central Moneymarkets Unit;

(i)  the Group incurred a secondment fee of HK$22.7
million for the year (2020: HK$24.0 million) in respect of
secondees from the HKMA;

(i) the Company paid a back-up site service fee of HK$0.4
million for the year (2020: HK$0.6 million) to the HKMA,;

(iv) the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
increased its revolving credit facility to the Company to
HK$80 billion in October 2020 from HK$30 billion, and
there was no outstanding balance and accrued interest
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: nil for both); and

(v) on 28 June 2021, the Monetary Authority through the
Exchange Fund injected funds of HK$2.5 billion into the
Company for the purpose of financing the Company'’s
additional capital injection into the HKMCA on the same
date. Accordingly, the Monetary Authority through the
Exchange Fund maintained its commitment to inject
additional funds up to HK$17.5 billion in aggregate
(reduced from the original amount of HK$20 billion
after the above HK$2.5 billion capital injection into
the HKMCA) into the Company as equity for the sole
purpose of financing the Company’s additional capital
injection into the HKMCA and the Company maintained
its commitment to inject such additional funds into the
HKMCA as equity for the sole purpose of maintaining
the HKMCA's margin of solvency above a certain level.
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HERFNZ5BRETIIEA

() HEBERBRAFTIRMEK - K
MEZZE-_ZTFINAHKHD)
B BARNEEEERTEIT
NERER  ABFRERS
21801278 T 2 BEE R
EEB(BEARR P ND
BMEERFAETRENES A
BREZNER) B AME
R MRBEDAFRNEEEER
EMBBEELE 0 KR
EEREB QA MES 708 B
TT(Z T =T F:2208 %
T0)  EBRBRBRARAEE
MITERFEX « &

iy MZZT_ZF AAREBF
I WheR c BIL - AR BIAER
AFEERNEBEERTET
NERKEE2HEBEEGSA T
N EERATE THER
HBAEBRERRARIER
KR - B RMIEE7

@iy  ARFRIZFRR A T BT
FRIHE  REHE - ARF
AEm2EEAFEERE
MR EBEEEMAER M
BFEARARRREEZITES
BB e AAREEREE
MEF  EERBRARAAE
BHEREEEAABREERGT
2 - R RBFKREIBREER
BAAFBRERTEE R TER
KR ZE=_—F+ =8
=+—H8 ZEARFEBIF
BEEFNEMNESEFTAR
AIHRE B ATEBT(ZE
—TF ) AR TR
DERRBFFAINEES
BEHIIEBL(ZE_FF :
ME ) o LB REEA FER
REZEABARBEREHN
BEA AFENTEES
20BBI(ZT_TF : &) o
BAAFEEFGEEREEN
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Transactions with the Government included the following:

(i)  the HKMCI provided 80%, 90% and (since launch
in April 2020) 100% SFGS loan guarantees with a
total guarantee commitment up to HK$218 billion
reimbursable by the Government (including guarantees
on 100% SFGS loans acquired by the Company),
see Note 32 for details. With respect to the day-to-
day operation of the 100% SFGS, the Government
reimbursed HK$87.5 million (2020: HK$22.4 million) to
the HKMCI for the administrative expenses incurred by
the HKMCI for the year;

(i) the Company entered into an agreement with the
Government in 2020, pursuant to which the Company
maintained its commitment to purchase from SFGS
lenders all 100% SFGS loans that are fully guaranteed
by the Government via the HKMCI, see Note 17 for
details;

(i) the Company and the HKMCI entered into an
agreement with the Government, pursuant to which
the Company committed to purchase all loans
under the PLGS from the participating Als and the
Government provided full funding to the Company
for the purchase of all the PLGS loans, the HKMCI is
responsible for the operation and administration of the
PLGS. With respect to the advance payment received
from the Government to purchase loans under the
PLGS, a portion of such advance funding pending for
the purchase of loans was deposited with Als with an
outstanding balance of HK$0.7 billion (2020: nil) and the
remaining portion of the advance payment was placed
with the Exchange Fund on behalf of the Government
with an outstanding balance of HK$4.7 billion as at 31
December 2021 respectively (2020: nil for both). The
HKMCI was appointed by the Government to act as an
administrator for PLGS for a fee of HK$2.2 million (2020:
nil) for the year. Risks and rewards arising from the
PLGS loans rest with the Government; and

(iv) the Company held investment of HK$307 million (2020:
nil) in the Hong Kong Government Bonds as at 31
December 2021 and the interest thereon was HK$0.8
million (2020: nil).

The Company provided corporate support services to its
subsidiaries during the year for fees on an arm’s length
basis.
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FERTAERIE AN TG ANT ¢ Balances of amounts due to relevant related parties are as
follows:

HEES B
The Exchange Fund The Government

2021 2020 2021 2020
Ti#rx FHT Tigx THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

INEE S (KI:E20)  Placements with the Exchange Fund

(Note 20) 28,633,258 16,336,835 - -
HiAE(HIF25K%32)  Other liabilities (Notes 25 and 32) - - 19,382,767 7,872,016
(b) EEEEEAS (b) Key management personnel
FTEEREABRBENEEAED Key management personnel are those persons having
RBERE - 1518 AT S AR R B T authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
WAL BEEEREREEAS - controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,

including directors and senior officers.

RZEZ—FRZZ-FF . F2F Compensation of the key management personnel for 2021
[E A BWF B EE - and 2020 comprised:

FehEMERES ST Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 31,237 31,244
BEBR 12 1E A Post-employment benefits 2,866 2,993

34,103 34,237
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30. #*&iE 30. Commitments
(a) &XF (a) Capital

2021 2020

T TF&TT

HK$'000 HK$'000

SHENETL Authorised and contracted for 3,356 6,780
EHLEBRRET L Authorised but not contracted for 60,557 106,695

63,913 113,475
P ERHREFZHBEBREHER The above capital commitments mainly relate to

AR -

(b) HAthikiE

REEREFAIERE

Undrawn loan commitments

commitments to purchase computer equipment and
software.

(b) Other commitments

2020

TAT
HK$'000

2,847,131 2,028,272

31. HIBIRMEET B R 2 EiRBETE

R-TE-_—F+-_A=+—8 A£EK
BRETENRBRIZRAIELN H8IES
TT(ZB T4 : 5458 L) - HF83E
BIL(ZZT_TF : 98B T) BRI ER
REARBEBRE  mMALEAH1TE
EHT8IEABIL(ZE_ZF : 476875
L) B R

RZF_—F+-_A=+—8 FAEEZX
ZRIB B M E R R R AR ) S 187 878
T(ZZT-FF  1508% L) HR47{E

BIL(ZZEZZF : 27B L) ERZER

wE A T%Eﬁ%l& A S5 B Bl 5 174

FEHRTM0EBET(ZT_FF 123188
JT) B o

31. Mortgage Insurance Programme and Reverse
Mortgage Programme

As at 31 December 2021, the total risk-in-force of the Group under
the MIP was approximately HK$88.9 billion (2020: HK$54.5 billion)
of which HK$8.3 billion (2020: HK$6.9 billion) was ceded to the
approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$80.6 billion (2020:
HK$47.6 billion) was retained by the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the total risk-in-force of the Group
under the RMP was approximately HK$18.7 billion (2020: HK$15.0
billion) of which HK$4.7 billion (2020: HK$2.7 billion) was ceded to
the approved reinsurer and the balance of HK$14.0 billion (2020:
HK$12.3 billion) was retained by the Group.
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32. p/hERREE SR EI T 89455

EEiEE
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ERB BT PEREERTBNESH
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32. Special concessionary measures under the SME

Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Group provided loan guarantee products with 80% and 90%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate, together with guarantee for 100% SFGS loans
acquired for a total guarantee commitment up to HK$218 billion
reimbursable by the Government.

Regarding the 80% and 90% guarantee products, all guarantee
fees collected under the special loan guarantee products are set
aside to meet the relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket
expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will
be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government.
The Group is responsible for the operation of the product and the
applicable day-to-day operating costs.

There is no impact on the consolidated income statement of the
Group in respect of guarantee fee revenue and default claims.
Given that the Group operates only these products for the
Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards associated
with this product rest with the Government. Hence, the risk-in-
force for these products has not been included as the Group’s off-
balance sheet exposures.

For the 100% SFGS, please refer to Note 17 for more details.
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33. AT BIRA TR EHEE 33. Statement of financial position and reserve
£J)] movement of the Company

BIXAER=ZF=—%+=A

33.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at

=+—HHMBRRAR 31 December 2021
2021 2020
TERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
HekEHES Cash and short-term funds 33,813,827 16,797,113
JRE Ui ) B K FE 3R Interest and remittance receivables 862,200 467,932
TEemT A Derivative financial instruments 812,397 797,352
N REERETEIT Loans with special 100%
MBS BEREEER guarantee under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme 71,063,154 36,084,713
EREAFE Loan portfolio, net 7,117,247 5,463,004
BHIRE Investment securities:
— AR TEE LA AEA — at fair value through other
iﬁl&/\ comprehensive income 3,647,182 4,418,962
REEE AR — at fair value through profit or loss 10,710 265,769
— ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ AR E — at amortised cost 10,987,143 9,160,264
SNEE S TF K Placements with the Exchange Fund 4,665,273 =
fEARIRE Interests in subsidiaries 14,120,803 10,723,687
BN - He hEMEE Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 1,910,836 155,034
EE&E Fixed assets 213,559 234,950
BEEAH Total assets 149,224,331 84,568,780
afE LIABILITIES
FERTF B Interest payable 688,255 342,501
B ARFER Placements by subsidiary 147,000 20,000
FERTIRIE « TR & Accounts payable, accrued
HiaE expenses and other liabilities 13,913,015 6,455,675
MESLRIA Derivative financial instruments 334,529 281,230
EHNMIERE Current tax liabilities 136,064 136,745
EETRIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 5,747 5,037
ERTERES Debt securities issued 115,652,967 61,909,148
BEEE Total liabilities 130,877,577 69,150,336
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2021 2020

THERT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R EQUITY
A AEHBRAR Capital and reserves attributable
& to the equity holder:
(%N Share capital 9,500,000 7,000,000
R & A Retained profits 332 8,829,710 8,409,021
N ERFE Fair value reserve 33.2 11,416 9,519
Epst=ae Hedging reserve 332 5,628 (96)
ERHAE Total equity 18,346,754 15,418,444
EEREREE Total liabilities and equity 149,224,331 84,568,780

EEREN-_ZE-_—FRA+NAH

e BT -

REX
EIEERATEF

YUE Wai Man, Eddie
Deputy Chairman and

on 19 May 2022.

=<A

Executive Director

HITEFREH

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

LI Ling Cheung, Raymond
Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer
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33.2 RXATWIHE 33.2 Reserves of the Company
RE R AT ERHE Fapal- 1] it
Retained Fair value Hedging
profits reserve reserve Total
Tz T FHET T#x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZTZTF—f—B&H Balance as at 1 January 2020 8,235,410 24,814 - 8,260,224
AEERF Profit for the year 173,611 - - 173,611
Hﬁﬂ%@”ﬁ(* : Other comprehensive income:
NTEE { Iqur)\ﬁ‘rmiEHﬁlﬁn Change in the fair value of debt securities
RERE EEF at FvVOCI - (16,319) - (16,319)
NTEE ﬂ:.ﬁr)\ﬁ‘rmiﬁﬂﬁlm Change in the loss allowance of debt
NELEFERRESD securities at FVOCI - 1,024 - 1,024
RS RE RSP T Change in the fair value of hedging
ANTEED instruments at cash flow hedge - - (96) (96)
REELEWEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 173,611 (15,295) (96) 158,220
RZEB-EF+-A=+-H As at 31 December 2020 8,409,021 9,519 (96) 8,418,444
AEERH Profit for the year 420,689 - - 420,689
ﬁﬁ%w&z* ; Other comprehensive income:
NEEE I:EMHﬁt%EMAZ%ﬁ Change in the fair value of debt securities
NEBEFLTELED at FvoCl - 2,634 - 2,634
?@“f I:EMHHJ%EM&*’\ Change in the loss allowance of debt
EREFEERELD securities at FVOC - (737) - (737)
Aiﬁﬁu\&wa’m/ﬂfﬂl Change in the fair value of hedging
ARTFEZH) instruments at cash flow hedge - - 5,724 5,724
AFEEANEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 420,689 1,897 5,724 428,310
—Z-_-%¥+-ZA=+-H As at 31 December 2021 8,829,710 11,416 5,628 8,846,754
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3. BEENXS KIS 49y  34. Directors’ material interests in transactions,

35.

EXFIERAR

HE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFEAN "
NEENR TG T L AEEFEAKEERE—
FHARREFBEEN BFAEA
RAARESHMATHEHEBEERB(RE(A
AEPDER) EER B EEREEE AN
EREMNEMNRS - REMEL

BBMBRE

BEERPR_ZE-_—_FRAATNLBBBAREY
TR o

RRRBNERBLZBENRE L BEHRRNF
MR — B o MNFERIN—2 - BIARX
ARE -

arrangements and contracts

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021, there
subsisted or entered into any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Company's business, to which any
member of the Group was a party, and in which any person who
was a director of the Company at any time during the year or a
connected entity (as defined in the Companies Ordinance) of any
such person had, directly or indirectly, a material interest.

35. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 19 May 2022.

The Company makes every effort to ensure consistency between the
Chinese and English versions of this Independent Auditor’s Report and
Financial Statements. In the event of any inconsistency, the English
version shall prevail.
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